LUNENBURG COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
160 COURTHOUSE SQUARE
LUNENBURG COURTS BUILDING, LUNENBURG, VIRGINIA
April 8, 2021 Meeting

6:00PM 1. Call to Order
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance: Supervisor Slayton
3. Requests for Additions to the Agenda
4. Conflict of Interest Statements & Organizational Matters -
5. Citizen Comment Period
6. Consent Agenda:
A) Minutes of the March 11, 2021 Meeting
B) Warrants for Approval March 2021
C) Treasurer’s Reports February 2021
7. County Offices and Departments
A) VA Department of Transportation
B) Lunenburg County School Board
C) Commissioner of the Revenue—Disabled Veteran License Fee
D) Treasurer’s Surplus
8. Piedmont Area Veterans Council — Sarah Maddox
9. Nominations and Appointments
10. FY2021-22 Budget Discussion
A) Budget Presentations (as scheduled)
11. Planning and Economic Development Update
A) Letter from Red Brick Solar j
12. Administrator’s Update
A) Leave Policy Updates
B) Lunenburg County Emergency Operations Plan Renewal
13. County Attorney Update
14. Closed Session Items (if necessary)
15. Other Business (per Board approval)
16. Adjournment

GUIDANCE FOR 4-8-2021 MEETING:
-All Supervisors will adhere to social distancing. All citizens/guests who attend the Board of Supervisors meeting must maintain a
distance of at least six feet apart at all times and wear face coverings according to Governor's Executive Order No. 72.
-It is requested that advance inquiries about agenda items be directed to the County Administrator prior to the meeting at
tgee@Iunenburgva.net or by phone at 434-696-2142 to address your concerns prior to the Board meeting.
-This meeting plan is subject to change, based on further action by the Governor of Virginia and/or the Lunenburg County Board of
Supervisors.

' -It is the intention of the Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you
need special accommodations, please contact the County Administrator’s Office at 434-696-2142 prior to the meeting date.

-- Tracy M. Gee, County Administrator




Consent Agenda:
A) Minutes of the March 11, 2021 Meeting
B) Warrants for Approval March 2021
C) Treasurer’s Reports February 2021




LUNENBURG COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
GENERAL DISTRICT COURTROOM
LUNENBURG COURTS BUILDING

LUNENBURG, VIRGINIA DR A FT

Minutes of March 11, 2021 Meeting

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors was held on Thursday,
March 11, 2021 at 6:00 pm in the General District Courtroom, Lunenburg Courts Building, Lunenburg, Virginia.
The following members were present: Supervisors Frank Bacon, T. Wayne Hoover, Alvester Edmonds, Mike
Hankins, Charles R. Slayton, Robert Zava, County Administrator Tracy M. Gee, Deputy Administrator Nicole A.
Clark and County Attorney Frank Rennie. Supervisor Edward Pennington was absent.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, guests, Supervisors and staff adhered to social distancing and wearing
masks in the courtroom.

Chairman Slayton called the meeting to order.
Supervisor Bacon provided the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chairman Slayton requested additions to the agenda from the Board and the public. Supervisor Hoover
requested that an update on Crossroads Community Services Board be added as 9A.

Chairman Slayton requested any discussion for the Citizen Comment Period. There were no requests to
speak.

Supervisor Bacon made motion, seconded by Supervisor Edmonds and approved by roll call vote, with
six Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to accept the Consent Agenda to include the Minutes
of the February 11, 2021 meeting, the Treasurer’s January reports and the following Warrants for Approval:

February 2021: Payroll: Direct Deposit S 131,921.54
Payroll Check #17227 S 669.72
Payroll Taxes Federal: S 41,572.33
Payroll Taxes State: S 7,326.53
Payroll VRS payment: S 29,703.44
Payroll ICMA-RC payment: S 896.06
Payroll Health Savings Deposits: S 4,495.63
Accounts Payable: #60540-60681 S 372,410.62
Total: S 588,995.87

Supervisor Bacon made motion, seconded by Supervisor Edmonds and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to enter into public hearing regarding the Airport
Hangar Lease Agreement between Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors and Mr. Daniel Bond.

Administrator Gee commented that Airport Manager Larry Way had been contacted by Mr. Daniel Bond.
Mr. Bond would like to lease the hanger to operate an aircraft mechanic shop. There was no public comment.
County Attorney Rennie advised that he had reviewed the lease agreement and felt it was satisfactory.

1




Supervisor Hoover made motion, seconded by Supervisor Edmonds and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to exit public hearing regarding the Airport Hangar
Lease Agreement between Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors and Mr. Daniel Bond.

Supervisor Bacon made motion, seconded by Supervisor Edmonds and approved by roll call vote,ywith six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to approve and sign the Airport Hangar Lease
Agreement between Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors and Mr. Daniel Bond.

LEASE — LUNENBURG AIRPORT HANGAR

THIS LEASE is made and entered into this 11t day of March, 2021, by and between LUNENBURG COUNTY, VIRGINIA (hereinafter
referred to as "Lessor"), and Daniel E. Bond, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Lessee").

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the benefits inuring the parties hereunder, and in further consideration of the
duties imposed upon the parties hereby, Lessor hereby lets, leases and demises unto Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the
property described below, upon the following terms and conditions:

2 > 3 PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: The property hereby leased from Lessor to Lessee consists of two(2)acresmore orless
("Property") The property isgoverned by the Lunenburg County Airport Minimum Standards and Rules and Regulations (copy attached).
The Lunenburg County Airport Commission will improve the Property pursuant to the regulations set forth by the Virginia Department of
Aviation.

2. LEASE TERM/TERMINATION: The initial term of this lease shall be two (2) years, commencing on March 1, 2021, and
extending to and through February 28, 2023. After March 1,2023 this lease will automatically renew for an additional term of two (2) years.
To initiate a termination hereof, the non-terminating party must receive written notice from the terminating party at least one hundred
eighty (180) calendar days prior to the effective date ofthe termination. If Lessor receives such notice after the last day on which such
nolice would be effective, then such notice shall serve Lo effect a termination on the first day of the month following that identified in the
notice of termination.

3.  RENT: The rent due from Lessee to Lessor during the initial two-year term hereof shall be $650.00 per month. If the terms
and conditions hereof automatically renew for an additional term of two (2) years, the increase in rent due from Lessee to Lessor shall be
based onthe most current published Consumer Price Index. Either party has the right to request renegotiation of the rental rate with a
60-day notice prior to the date that the new rate should ta keeffect.

The first of Lessee's monthly lease installments hereunder shall be due and payable on March 15, 2021, with a monthly lease
installment being due and payable on the fifteenth day of each month thereafter throughout the initial term hereof, and the renewal
term hereof, if applicable.

4. LATE PAYMENT PENALTY; INTEREST; COLLECTION COSTS: If any monthly installment due hereunder is not received by Lessor on
or before the twenty-fifth (25t%) day of the month when due, then effective on said twenty-fifth (25'™) day there shall automatically be
added a late charge equal to five percent (5%) of that month's lease. If any monthly installment due hereunder is not received by Lessor
on or before the last day of the month when due, then effective on the first day of the next-following month, interest shall begin to accrue
at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum. If Lessor initiates a collection effort, it shall be entitled to recover from Lessee all
collection costs incurred by it, including reasonable attorney's fees.

5. ADDRESSES FORNOTICES: Allnoticesand communication undertheterms of this lease shall be given only by Certified or
Registered Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party for whom intended at the following addresses:

To Lessor: Lunenburg County, Virginia

ATTN: Tracy M. Gee, County Administrator
11413 Courthouse Road
Lunenburg, Virginia 23592

To Lessee: Daniel E. Bond, Inc.
14001 Lyndhurst Drive
Chester, VA 23831
Either party may provide the other with written notice of a new address to which notices should be mailed, and the effective
date thereof to be effective; such written notice must be received by the other party, and the notifying party must secure written evidence
of such receipt.

6. TAXES: Ifany local real estate tax is imposed onthe Property during the term hereof, payment thereof shall be
made by Lessee. Lessee will be responsible for all personal property and business taxes assessed on personal property based on the
Property.

7. UTILITIES: Lessee shall pay all utility costs incurred in the provision of necessary utilities to serve the Property,

including any connection fees and depositsrequired. The utility costs paid by Lessee shall include, although not exclusively, costs
incurred for heating, cooling, electricity, water service, sewer service and telephone service.

8. LESSEE'S DUTY TO PROCURE PROPERTY INSURANCE AND GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE: At their own cost, Lessee
shall procure general liability insurance affording coverage in an amount of at least ONE MILLION ($1,000,000.00) DOLLARS, which shall
insure against injury to person or property on the demised premises, and which shall designate both Lessee and Lessor as insured parties.
Upon execution hereof Lessee shall provide Lessor with proof that such insurance is in full force and effect on an annual basis. If such
insurance coverage lapses, or if Lessee fails to provide Lessor with proof of such coverage, then Lessor shall be entitled to procure such
insurance coverage, and Lessee shall be indebted to Lessor for the amount of any premium paid by Lessor to secure such coverage. Lessee
shall procure such insurance as it deems appropriate to insure against damage to any personal property of Lessee situated on the
premises, and Lessee indemnifies and saves harmless Lessor fro any loss, liability or responsibility arising from damage to, or destruction




of, the personal property of Lessee.

9. SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGEANDABATEMENTOFRENT: Intheeventof damage to the Property, whether occasioned by act
of.God or otherwise, to such extent that the Property cannot be occupied by Lessee, for so long as such condition exists the rent otherwise
due from Lessee to Lessor shall be abated. In such event, Lessor shall have the right and privilege, but neither the duty nor obligation, to
effect such repairs as are necessary to restore the Property to a functional condition. If Lessor elects not to effect such repairs, then it shall
forthwith notify Lessee in writing, whereupon this lease shall be terminated, without penalty to either party. If Lessor elects to effect such
repairs, then all terms and conditions of this lease shall remain in full force and effect, and once use of the Property is fully restored to
Lessee, Lessee's duty to pay rent shall likewise be fully restored.

10. OUTSIDE STORAGE: Lessee shall be allowed to locate an enclosed trailer/flatbed trailer, a truck for hauling, and a
personal vehicle for transit on the premises, as long as these items are for use in Lessee's business operations, or otherwise. If this personal
property is garaged/parked in Lunenburg County for an extended length of time, it may be considered by the Commissioner of the Revenue to be
subject to Lunenburg County personal property taxes.

11, RIGHT OF INSPECTION: Lessor or Lessor's agents may enter the Property at reasonable times to inspect same.

12. SUBLEASE: Lessee shall not have the right to sublease the Property, or any portion thereof.

13. SURRENDER OF POSSESSION: Upon the expiration of the initial term hereof or renewal term hereof Lessee shall
surrender the Property to Lessor in asgood a state and condition as existed upon commencement hereof, reasonable wear and tear
excepted.

14. CONTROLLING LAW: The parties acknowledge thatthetermsand conditions hereof shall be interpreted, construed and

enforced under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The parties further acknowledge that in the event of litigation under any of the
terms and conditions hereof, the Circuit Court/General District Court for Lunenburg County, Virginia, shall have exclusive jurisdiction.

a5 MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS: The parties agree that any modification or amendment of this lease shall be in
writing signed by all parties before such modification or amendment shall have force or effect.

16. BINDING AGREEMENT: The terms and conditions of this lease shall be
binding on the parties hereto, their heirs, assigns and other successors in title.
17 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: The parties acknowledge that the terms and conditions hereof constitute the entire agreement

between the parties, and that no modification or amendment hereof shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed
by all parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this lease is executed on behalf of Lunenburg County, Virginia, by the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of its
Board of Supervisors, whose signature is duly attested by the Clerk to said Board; and by Danny Bond who shall be personally liable
hereunder.

The monthly VDOT report was provided. Administrator Gee directed attention to their update on VDOT’s
plan for debris clean-up throughout the County. VDOT has contracted with out of state contractors to cut trees
and branches as well as clean up along the right of ways. The clean-up project will take sixty to ninty days.
Supervisor Hankins commended VDOT for their efforts in removing debris and opening roads quickly during the
recent ice storms.

Assistant Superintendent James Abernathy presented the monthly school report. He advised that students
at the elementary level would begin attending school four days per week the following week. If successful, they
will do the same with secondary schools. Mr. Abernathy advised that the 2021-2022 budget figures were
calculated based on 1550 students and would be provided to the Board for review towards the end of March.
He noted that the school system would be receiving a third allocation of CARES Act funding. He is expecting
over one million dollars in funds, primarily to be used for aid in learning loss, maintenance, sanitation and
cleaning. Mr. Abernathy advised that they are planning for a more normal, pre-pandemic school setup this fall.

Administrator Gee reviewed the County Office reports. She advised that the unmanned dump site at the
courthouse complex was continously being abused with illegal and excess dumping. She requested a Landfill
Committee meeting for March 18 at 3:00 p.m. to discuss several outstanding issues. Administrator Gee
advised that Animal Control Officer Ray Elliott had received donations to install a sidewalk in front of the kennels
at the animal shelter. The Sheriff provided a request to transfer $10,000 from the Compensation Board vacancy

savings to the Sheriff’s Office Supplies line item.

Supervisor Hoover made motion, seconded by Supervisor Edmonds and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to transfer $10,000 from the Compensation Board
vacancy savings to the Sheriff’s Office Supplies line item.

3




Supervisor Hoover provided an update on the Crossroads Community Services Board. He advised that the
annual audit had just been completed and it was satisfactory. He noted that staff would be returning to the
office on a full time basis beginning March 15t and they would begin seeing patients on April 1%,

County Planner Glenn Millican provided his monthly report. He advised that this would be his last meeting
in his official capacity as County Planner. He stated that the old middle school demolition project was
progressing and asbestos removal should begin the following week. He commented that two solar farm projects

-would be presented before the Planning Commission in the coming months. He thanked the Board for their
cooperation during his time with Lunenburg County and stated he would be available for consult as the County
searches and guides his replacement.

Administrator Gee provided her monthly report. She shared that the two ice storms in mid-February
required a great deal of county resources. She requested an official local declaration of emergency from
February 14" until March 1%. She thanked all the local staff and volunteers for all their assistance with the
emergency shelter. Administrator Gee advised that she updated the committee book and provided the newest
version to each board member. She requested the Finance Committee hold a meeting just prior to the
scheduled April 8" Board of Supervisors meeting. Administrator Gee reported that the first community mass
COVID-19 vaccine event would be held the following day at Central High School. The health department is
preparing to vacinate 500 people in the local area.

Supervisor Hoover made motion, seconded by Supervisor Hankins and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to formally declare a local declaration of emergency for
the ice storm from February 14, 2021 to March 1,2021.

County Attorney Rennie presented a draft document containing rules of procedures and code of ethics as
requested by the Board of Supervisors, which should be accepted on an annual basis at the reorganizational

meeting:

RULES OF PROCEDURE
ARTICLE |
OFFICERS AND THEIR SELECTION
A. The Officers of the Board of Supervisors shall consist of a Chairman and Vice Chairman, each of whom shall serve for a term of one (1) year, or
at any other terms as provided in accordance with Va. Code § 15.2-1422.
B. Nomination of Officers shall be made from the Board at the first meeting of each calendar year. Election of Officers shall follow immediately.
ARTICLE Il
DUTIES OF OFFICERS
A. The Chairman shall:
(1 Preside at all meetings;
(2) Work closely with the County Administrator on day to day matters, approve appropriate financial documents, and approve the agenda
for all meetings;
3) Serve on all standing committees of the Board:
4) Carry out such other duties as assigned by the Board.
B. The Vice-Chairman shall act in the absence or inability of the Chairman to act.
ARTICLE Ill
AGENDA PREPARATION POLICY
A. The County Administrator shall prepare an agenda for each regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors. Supervisors, staff, and others may submit

to the County Administrator items for the agenda at any time prior to close of business Wednesday preceding the regular meeting to which such
item relates. Emergency Items will be added as an amendment to the agenda.

B. Copies of the agenda shall be made available at the office of the County Administrator for each Supervisor and for members of the News Media
serving the County and the public not later than close of business on Friday preceding the meeting to which it relates.

ARTICLE IV

ME;E_TINGS
A. The time and place of Board Meetings shall be set from time to tife by resolution of the Board in conformance with State Law. The regular meeting




" schedule shall be set at the organizational meeting held in January each year.

B. Minutes from the previous meeting shall be delivered to the Board members with the agenda prior to the next meeting. Unless requested by a Board
member, the minutes will not be read and will be approved upon motion and vote of the Board.

C. Order of Business
(1) Commencement of Meetings:

At the: time established in accordance with Article IV (A) of these Rules for the commencement of regular meetings or at the hour
specified for continued or special meetings, the Chairman shall call the meeting to order and shall direct the clerk to note the absence of
any Board members by roll call. A quorum shall be required for commencement of any meeting.

2) Agenda:
An agenda shall be prepared by the County Administrator in accordance with Article 111 under these Rules. The proposed agenda shall
be adopted by the Board at each meeting. Should the chairman or any member of the Board have a matter which he or she feels needs
to be brought to the attention of the Board but which is not on the agenda, or if there is an amendment to the order of the agenda, he or
she may make a motion that an addition or amendment be made to the agenda. Such amended agenda must be approved by a majority
of the Board members present.

D. Quorum and Method of Voting

A majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors shall constitute a quorum of the Board. All questions submitted to the Board for decision

shall be determined via voice vote of a majority of the supervisors voting on any such questions, unless otherwise provided by law. The name of

each member voting and how he or she voted may be recorded.

E. Procedure for Roll Call Vote of Board Members

(1) The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors shall cast the last vote.

(2) The Members of the Board of Supervisors shall cast votes in district order on a rotating basis per meeting.

3) The Chairman/Clerk shall restate all motions before a vote is taken and the result of the vote shall be announced following each vote.
F. General Rules of Procedure

The Board's Parliamentary Procedures shall be Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 10" edition, specifically to include Section 49, Conduct of
Business in Boards, pages 469 - 471, in all matters not covered by the Board's procedure, to the extent compatible with law and the historical
practices of the Board. The County Attorney, or his or her designee, shall act as Parliamentarian to the Board. Any questions involving the
interpretation or application of Robert's Rules shall be addressed to the County Attorney. The Board may amend, by Resolution, the rules as it
deems appropriate. The following rules shall apply:

(1 Members are not required to obtain the floor before making motions or speaking, which they can do while seated.
o)) Motions need not be seconded. If a motion is not seconded, the Chairman shall decide if a vote is taken on the motion or if a motion is

dead.

3) There is no limit to the number of times a member can speak to a question, and motions to close or limit debate generally should not
be entertained.

“) Informal discussion of a subject is permitted while no motion is pending.

) The Chairman can speak in discussion and can vote on all questions, but cannot make motions unless by consent of a majority of Board
members present.

(6) No Board member is required to vote on any issue.

If any Board member determines, prior to the calling of any issue before the Board, that he, because of conflict or otherwise, will abstain from
voting on such issue, he shall announce such intention at the time the issue comes before the Board and shall not participate in the discussion on
such issue or question.

An abstention shall be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum. An abstention defeats a motion requiring a unanimous vote.
7 In the incidence of a tie vote, the issue voted upon by the Board is dead and therefore voted down.

(8) Only Board members and the Parliamentarian shall have standing to raise noncompliance with these Rules of Procedure, and only during
the current meeting at the time of violation. Failure of the Board to comply with these General Rules of Procedure shall not invalidate
any action taken by the Board.

G. Member Absenting Himself from Meeting Prior to Adjournment
After the name of any member of the Board has been recorded as present at any meeting of the Board, he shall not absent himself from the remainder
of the meeting prior to adjournment unless by consent of the Board.

H. Board to Sit with Open Doors ;

The Board of Supervisors shall sit with open doors and all persons conducting themselves in an orderly manner may attend the meetings; however,

the Board may hold closed sessions as permitted by law and when deemed necessary by a majority vote of the Board.

The consent agenda shall be introduced by a motion "to approve", and shall be considered by the Board as a single item. There shall be no debate

or discussion by any member of the Board regarding any item on the consent agenda. The Clerk or his/her designee may provide a brief written

summary or memo on each item included in the consent agenda. Upon request of any Board member who wishes to question or discuss an item,
that item shall be removed from the Consent Agenda. This item shall be transferred onto the agenda for consideration.
I Citizen Comment Period
" Rules for Citizen Comment Period:

To ensure that the affairs of the Board and its committees may be conducted in an orderly manner, to ensure that all persons desiring to address the

Board on matters pertinent to it are afforded an opportunity to do so, to permit persons in attendance to observe and hear the proceedings of the

Board without distraction, and to permit to the fullest extent the Board to conduct County business with minimal disruption, the following rules are

established.

(n Each person desiring to speak must sign up in advance of the opening of the Citizens' Comment period on the agenda.

) Each speaker shall be limited to a period of three minutes per comment period; when two minutes have passed the speaker will be
reminded that there is one minute remaining.

3) Speakers who have signed up may use their allotted time only for themselves and may not donate their time to other speakers.

4) Speakers will not be permitted to use audiovisual materials or other visual displays, but may present written and photographic
materials to the Board members.

(5) Comments must be confined to matters germane to the business of the Board of Supervisors and shall not be cumulative or repetitive.

(6) Speakers should address the Board with decorum - loud, boisterous, and disruptive behavior, obscenity, and vulgarity should be avoided
as well as other words or acts tending to evoke violence or deemed to be a breach of the peace.

(7) The Citizens' Comment period is not intended to be question and answer period for dialogue with County officials. Questions which

are raised during a comment period may at the disctetion of the Board be responded to by County officials after sufficient time for




appropriate investigation.

(€] Speakers shall remain at the podium while addressing the Board.

©) Speakers shall not be interrupted by audience comments, calls/whistles, laughter, or other gestures. Individuals in the audience who do
not abide by this policy after a warning will be asked to leave the meeting.

(10) Expressive activities including, but not limited to, petitioning, picketing, displaying signs and posters, solicitation, demonstrating,
pamphlet distribuition, and conducting polls shall not be permitted within the Courthouse or in arty*other building that the Board is

meeting. 4
These rules do not preclude persons from delivering to the Board or its Clerk written materials including reports, statements, exhibits, letters, or
signed petitions or to prohibit persons from presenting oral or written comments on any subject germane to the business of the Board, to individual
Board members or to the Board through its Clerk outside the context of the public meeting.

Agenda Item Procedure
The following guidelines shall be followed for comment addressed to specific agenda items:

g (b In order to prevent obvious questions from consuming Board Meeting time, the Chairman and/or designated person(s) may give a brief

explanation of each agenda item prior to opening the floor for citizens' comments.

ARTICLE V
SPECIAL MEETINGS

The Board of Supervisors is authorized to hold such special meetings as it may deem necessary. Special meetings need not be held at the courthouse,
county office building, or other place used for regular meetings. A special meeting must be held whenever it is requested by the Chairman or two
(2) or more Board members, who must make a request to the Clerk of the Board specifying the time and the matters to be considered. The Clerk,
after consulting with the Chairman, then must notify each member of the Board of Supervisors and the County Attorney of the time, place and
matters to be considered.

In order for a special meeting to be held without such notice, each member of the Board must attend the meeting or sign a waiver of notice. Only
matters specified in the notice may be considered in a special meeting unless all members of the Board are present, in which case, other issues may
be discussed, subject to approval by a majority of the Board and the requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act.

ARTICLE VI
PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
ERULEDURE FOR DEALING WITH ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

All matters not on the agenda must be raised during citizens comment period. Any matter not on the agenda shall not be considered unless approved
for consideration by the majority of the Board present in accordance with Article IV, C (2).

ARTICLE Vil
PUBLIC HEARINGS

All public hearings will be advertised in accordance with the Virginia Code. Public hearings may be postponed, continued or canceled at the
discretion of the Board.
In addition to those required by law, the Board at its discretion may hold public hearings when it decides that a hearing will be in the public

interest.
The case before the Board shall be summarized by the Chairman or designated person(s). Interested parties wishing to speak must sign the register

- at the rear of the room prior to the start of the hearing. Each person wishing to speak will be called to the podium by the Chairman or designated

person(s) in the order such person signed the register and must state his or her name and address for the record. Each speaker shall be limited to
five (5) minutes, unless waived by the Board.

Board Members should limit their comments during the course of public hearing comments to ensure participation by the public without Board
interference.

Speakers should direct their comments or questions to the Board collectively and not to individual Board members.

ARTICLE VilI
APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES

Appointments to committees of the Board and to authorities, boards, and commissions, shall be made only by Resolution adopted by a majority of the full
Board. Prior to consideration of the nomination, the nominee shall be notified to determine his or her willingness to serve and to determine if he or she meets

the qualifications for such appointment.

ARTICLE IX
DUTIES OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

The County Administrator shall:

T ommgow »

Prepare the agenda for each meeting for approval in conformance with the agenda preparation procedure outlined herein, and act as the Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors at each Board meeting.

Keep a written record of all business transacted by the Board.

Administer the financial control procedures of the County as instructed by the Board.

Advise and inform the Board on all matters affecting County government.

Execute all formal documents authorized by the Board of Supervisors.

Provide and supervise all staff services directly under the control of the Board of Supervisors.

The County Administrator shall be responsible for all personnel management of the County. Department Directors will be hired and dismissed with
the consent of the Board of Supervisors.

Prepare an annual operating budget for the County government in accordance with guidelines established by the State auditor's office for approval
by the Board of Supervisors. The County Administrator shall be responsible for maintaining adequate financial and accounting records on all

- County business under their control.

Serve as the Board's representative in all circumstances where ﬂg Chairman, Vice Chairman, or a majority of the Board Members are not
available.




3 Perform all other duties delegated by the Board as required by law.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENTS

A. The Rules of Procedure may be amended by a recorded:majority vote of the entire membership of the Board provided that written notice has-been
given to all members of the Board and a copy of the proposed amendment is sent with the notice, prior to said meeting. b

B. The Rules of Procedure may be suspended in whole or in part only upon the unanimous vote of Board members present, relating to any matter
before it.

CODE OF ETHICS AND STANDARDS OF CONDUCT
FOR MEMBERS OF
THE LUNENBURG COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CODE OF ETHICS

Recognizing that persons who hold public office have been given a public trust and that the stewardship of such office demands the highest levels of ethical
and moral conduct, any person serving on the Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors should adhere to the following Code of Ethics:
1. Uphold the Constitution, laws and regulations of the United States and of all governments therein and never knowingly be a part to

their evasion.
2. Put loyalty to the highest moral principles and to the County as a whole above loyalty to individuals, districts, or particular groups.
3 Give a full measure of effort and service to the position of trust for which stewardship has been granted; giving earnest effort and best

thought to the performance of duties.

Seek to find and use the most equitable, efficient, effective, and economical means for getting tasks accomplished.

Adopt policies and programs that support the rights and recognize the needs of all citizens regardless of race, sex, age, rel igion, creed,

country of origin or handicapping condition. Avoid adopting policies, supporting programs or engaging in activities that discriminate

against or offend individuals because of race, sex, age, religion, creed, and country of origin or handicapping condition.

6. Ensure the integrity of the actions of the Board of Supervisors by avoiding discrimination through the dispensing of special favors or
unfair privileges to anyone, whether for remuneration or not. A member should never accept for himself or herself or for family members,
favors or benefits under circumstances, which might be construed by reasonable persons as influencing the performance of Board of
Supervisors duties.

7 Make no private promises of any kind binding upon the duties of any office, since a public servant has no private word, which can be
binding on public duty.

8. Engage in no business with the county government, or the school system, either directly or indirectly, which is inconsistent with the
conscientious performance of Board of Supervisors duties except as may be consistent with the conflict of interest statutes in the Code

of Virginia.

i

9. Never use any information gained confidentially in the performance of Board of Supervisors duties as a means of making private
profit.

10. Expose, through appropriate means and channels, corruption, misconduct, or neglect of duty whenever discovered.

11. Adhere to the principle that the public's business should be conducted in the public view by observing and following the letter and spirit
of the Freedom of Information Act using closed sessions only to deal with sensitive matters as provided by the Code of Virginia.

12. Avoid using the position of public trust to gain access to the media for the purposes of criticizing colleagues or citizens, impugning their
integrity or vilifying their personal beliefs.

13. Make sure, when responding to the media, that a clear distinction is made between personal opinion or belief and a decision made by

the Board.
14. Review orally and in public session, at the annual organizational meeting, each of these principles.
15. Pledge to honor and uphold these principles, ever conscious that public office is a public trust.

Supervisor Bacon made motion, seconded by Supervisor Hankins and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to approve and adopt the rules of procedure as
presented.

Supervisor Bacon made motion, seconded by Supervisor Hoover and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to approve and adopt the code of ethics as presented.

County Attorney Rennie advised that the Board should consider developing an employment contract with
the County Administrator. He noted that most counties have a contract in place to provide protections for both
the county and the administrator. He provided a draft contract to each Board member for discussion at the next
meeting in closed session.




Supervisor Bacon made motion, seconded by Supervisor Hoover and approved by roll call vote, with six
Supervisors voting yes, one absent, and none voting no, to adjourn.

Tracy M. Gee, ClerE Charles R. Slayton, Chairman

County Administrator Board of Supervisors




BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Charles R. Slayton, CHAIRMAN
Election District 4

Frank W. Bacon, VICE-CHAIRMAN
Election District 3

T. Wayne Hoover
Election District 1

Mike Hankins
Election District 2

Edward Pennington
Election District 5

Alvester L, Edmonds
Election District 6

Robert G. Zava
Election District 7

March 31, 2021

Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors
11413 Courthouse Road

Lunenburg, VA 23952

Honorable County Supervisors:

Lunenburg County Administration
11413 Courthouse Road
Lunenburg, VA 23952

Tracy M. Gee
County Administrator

Telephone: (434) 696-2142
Facsimile: (434) 696-1798

The following warrants, including accounting for all voided checks are listed according to Code of

Virginia § 15.2-1243 and § 15.2-1244 requiring your approval:

March 2021:

Sincerely,

Payroll: Direct Deposit

Payroll Check #17228-29

Payroll Taxes Federal:

Payroll Taxes State:

Payroll VRS payment:

Payroll ICMA-RC payment:
Payroll Health Savings Deposits:
Accounts Payable: #60682-60807

Total:

Qalymbite )

Tracy M. Gee

County Administrator

$ 132,688.52
S 797.65
$  41,930.03
S 742147
$ 29,800.96
$ 903.54
S 4,495.63

S 517,566.47

S 735,604.27



aovd

€0/1202

Pd3oyY

TR Ve-6-¢

—Te-h-€

‘qILSNLAY SV STVIOL LIIHS O0T ATMHIM THI STVNOH -05°9€8 65 TVLOL HHL
"QIINENNDOA ATSNOIAHYd ¥O MOTHL AALSIT SNOILAFOXHT HIIM INIWAVA ¥OJ YALSIOTY SIHL FAOIAAY A9IANHH I

00° 06°9€8'65
00"
06°9€8°69
00°
00° 06°9€8'69
00° 02°660'LE
00° PSTLEGIGL
00" 00°065°9
00" 9L°S9¢
LNNODSIA BZD@Z<
L202/%0

TYIOL TYNIA
TYIOL AdF
TYIOL MOHHD
TVIOL HOV
TYLOL SSVYID
L20Z/%0/€ 000 VYINIDYIA J0 AMNSVYIAL LOOL §8909
L20Z/%0/€ 000 T 4ANO¥D TYINIWNOMIANT INO 900 | 78909
LZ0Z/%0/€ 000 NOILVYINID MIAN 06 €8909
L202/%0/€ 000 NIZHIVY FAT 8001 28909
q4Iva SSYTID ¥YOANIA #ANFA ° #IOTHD
/€ - ®3eq 3oayd Wm"o,nmrumzHe
YALSIOAY MOHFHO d/V ALNNOD S¥NENENAT LZ0Z/¥0/€ g001dY




Lzoez/8z/c

L

can el

MDHEHD MDHEHO

gOvd

LL909S

“ON

oL

LZ0Z/%0/€ NO

917552
-9L°552 - - -0090-002000-SEL 1202/92/T
INOOWY S aINa  CON
LIN INNODDVY D dIOA ISHite]
£0/1207 - QOT¥Ed HNIINAODOV
-#HOLVL

GE10/100-804 ¥ALSIODAY MOFIHD dIOA d/Y

TIVO A9 NI LZ0Z/%0/€ NO

000 0020LZ9220LTL02Dd

TIVO A9 QIIVIEOD 0L -#HOLVE

VINIDYIA JA0 ¥HINSYHIL 281000 0000000

“ON HWVYN “ON “ON
HOIOANI JOANIA “dNIA 0/d
ALNNOD DINININNT Lzoz/v0/¢€ L§0dv




1

PAGE

—12021/03

ActPd

DISCOUNT

AMOUNT

3/16/2021

DATE

A/P CHECK REGISTER
Check Date -

CLASS

ENBURG COUNTY

VEND# VENDOR

39

3/17/2021 LUN
:35

AP100B
TIME-11
CHECK#

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

-o.---.---o--n-.-..n---...-.s..o..-a-.o.n.-......--.

LOVAOOONONOONMMOMOONOOON—DVONOOOONDNOOOMNOONOMO~OOOO
NOF0OCOONMVTOONNDVOOOOONOVATNANONOONSNIOOO~MOONO~ONOING O
O R O N s A R S R S S R S R iR i i St
SUATOO—FNMNNOUNNOSNIONS—IOF OO MSIOMNS OO OLINOIN DN OO [~ OO
LM~ SLNNNLNNMOVN—NOONTOO — N0 O OO O N N N0 0T N N W oo
TOMISVVIN— VW © N N ——Me—0 NEYMOINN N T LNOOMO N

= Fsad Rt e fe L S e R i

- © O — ~ o~ O Ne——— — © o ~wono

w0 — o~ L~ —

1—t—|—1—r—I—!—Pu—r—\—r—‘—FFFFr—I—P\—1—\—‘—!—v—‘—\—r—\—1—t—\—'I—t—'—-l—‘—t—!—‘—\—\—\—\—-‘—r-‘—i—i—ﬂ—\—-
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
\O\O\D\D\D\O\O\D\OW\D\D\D\D\D\O\D\DKD\OO\D\DlDLO\D\D\D\DkD\D\D\D\O\D\O\DkD\D\D\D\O\OLOlD\O\D\D\D\O\O\D
|—x—|—-—q—\—v—‘—‘—¢—\—|—ri—1—ri—t—‘-—\—\—‘—q—x—\—i—\—‘—r—t—q—v—q—‘—r—‘—q—x—‘—v—\—\—v—‘—l—‘—‘—v—'—q—\—v—
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOQOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

> O > ~O00 < z
Mo 1 24 NZZ2Z Z (o] 9]
m Z H 3] ZiHHHHH (@3] H JA0 zZ
0 <@ «~ O [als) O zZz HE E § Ay =
M B H HZ H 04 g - Q HZ < zZ0n ~
= H Z2 Mz (e]e] HEEEOO (=] H O Oy O >0
g M O H= g H DHHEHMM = Z N ~§ H HH =} [f )
& B~ 0 54-- %B HEGCHH « oHZ w0 Z >z A S
O HOD ALV <G oOEEE>>M HOCAQM <HO ne<
=SH Z3 B ZZ BEO [} . E—OEU-‘Q%OQ > HZEH [42]
H D43 01 nIHH . H NONUMHMHN M <= HZ HE HEZMZ o
<O § Om Z< <CHZZ Q «Z20000001™ M >NNUED (@] mw§<uo HE
HDMNIAMZA OHIm MO MOMZZZZMMEMMUhMSZ 0o O HpAHH DZ
OMHODH ZHNHEH KMEE OZAHHHHERGHMS HHAESZN HOBHOO OH OMm
HEHOO ~NEBEMIANaIMN OHZBHMEMZZHhNY ZNZNODOM JAHZAAKEHCNNS
MO MEHEODMCCZO0OD0 B <OMaMAuEE oS -OFM HAO = HOHEEKO MY &z
HZHMOORMBHJUEMHOXOOD m ~dA5>0nnn HO MAMMEEHEOWNC HNOMOZCOKEHHO
<HME MB%O s ofte e ] 53] ZZ2Z0 ~OmAFHE - > m\A 1O HOMAMDW
A O yzamamm%mmoonoo< Bug HOXSHSEHER O EEEEO
ASSHHDE m<§m ZER0Nnnm UUZZZHH>A§M > mseoga KZNCOOHUM Y
UK QM ZHMEDMERSHHOSHOOO ZZ < QEE‘ MEOMHROHH AOME
EHBUM COZHEHEH zmoom«qBEEEHHzcmbH 030 Z20MAQmMmm ZEM>N
qazmmwzzgzzz HuISZDH 5 EZZ>% mﬁﬁmmq mmgHﬁﬁgmzz HMO
AHEERESD <CCHEEII0000<HHAHHHOODD am HDD O MM CImMAZ M
<<<mmmmuooououovouoaoaaoaaoaammmmmmhhwwwwwmmmmmHHHHh
NANNLO—NON——O-NNOSN—OIHFOOVNAHONDMN IO — O NLIOYO) OV~ O) [~ — <L) O O
QUMY CAFNOCO— SO NN— O — I I I N O N HOVLFO—ONANNO O [~ OO OLH
NGO ~0 MO~ M =& —FO AOWOILN O WO CONDAFND NIFO—
[ - - O - O O O —
N O o N O O
N o o o o O

\DI\G)O’\Ot—va‘LnLDl\(OO\O\—Nmvm&ol\(DO\O\—Nmﬁ‘LH\D[\Q)O\OFNMQ‘m\D[\(DO\O\—NMQ‘LD&OI\
CO(DCD(DO\O\O\O\O\O\O\O\O\O\OOOOOOOOOO‘—q—‘——\—-—r—‘—-—\—-‘—NNNNNNNNNNmmmmmmmm
kO\D\DkO\O\DKD\D\D\O\DLO\O\Ol\[\l\(\[\l\l\[\l\l\l\[\l\l\t\l\l\l\l\(\l\[\[\l\l\(\l\l\l\l\(\[\l\l\l\l\[\l\
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
\D\D\D\D\D\DO\O\D\D\D\O&DkOkO\D\D\D\D\DO\D@\D\D\O\D\DLO\D\O\D\D\O\D\D\OLDKD\D\OkO\D\D&D\D\DLO\DLD\D\O




PAGE

- 2021/03

ActPd

- 3/16/2021

A/P CHECK REGISTER
Check Date

37

3/17/2021 LUNENBURG COUNTY

AP100B
TIME-11:35

DISCOUNT

AMOUNT

DATE

CLASS

VEND# VENDOR

CHECK#

bttt dolelelolololelolololololololololololololololelololololololololololelelolololololololelele =)
Slejelelelelolololololalololololololalalelololelslololslalolololololololalololelelolololo o lo lole oo Te)

OO, R L S RN R RSt T IR S o il et S T LN A R G T e T M o o T S R R R A i e e N e R

COVONINNONONSTOOOOOONOOWOOOOOTOOIOOONO~NOOWVWONOOYWNI~ND

COrOOAINNOVINEVVOOCOCOITO—OONOOONOVOONOINSONVOOVOROOND—O

L I o s L e T e T M ey B A e o W s Ny S SR R b e e e i

COMEOIFONOLVNAAFTOVOONOS~ONOOVNNONONOVNVOMINI—INNONOON OO

OMOA— > —OSVNNONNO VMO ONIFONOOOMONNO VNSO WVOONITODONM

NN . v~ O OO — 1 e SOODNOONIOT INNO—O O~ @ oo~
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ s ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
o o wn b Lo M ot O 5o | oo oam -
- W — - N

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T e T e e T e e T e T e 0 T T 0 T T T T T = T T = = = — —
ANNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN NN OO OO OO OO oY
eieiclelelclololololololololololololalelolololololololelelololelololololelololololelelele el l=== l= =]
ANANNNNNNNNNNNNANNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN NN
S N N N e N I N N e e e e N e I i e T T S A N NN S MO
fedlelleftetefNelNejNe e jNelNelNe o fNofNeojNelNefNe fNelVe Vo lVo lNofo Ve JUo XU JUe JNo JUo Vo Vo JUo NUo I Uo JUo R Uo Vo S Uo X Uo X Uo Y Vo T Uo T Vo Vo  to Lo X oY to X oY to ) to)
N T T S s Stk e e T e ———
N N e T N S o T T T T I o o N T TN T T o T L T S TN S e e M
MMM MMEMMMMMEMMMMMMMEMNMEMMMMEMNOMMEOMEO MMM ™

bdedei=i=i=l=lelelololololololololololololololalololololololelolololololololololelolelelelelelelel=To)]
[ tdeieiciclelelolelololelolololelololololololololololelololololololololoclalolololelelelalolo e lo lo o To)
Slejelelelelelelolelelelololololelololololololalolololelololololololololololololololelolslololo o lo T 1o)

HO O n
> <O M . 8 (@] 2] j<a]
Moz HED H O 9] By E 9] Iy
HO HO zZ m . 0 Zom H < H @EO
M o AZy U Al H H g g o3 HOHKH = Qe > D
H aHSE 2 0 O A 1] B O s 23] HHZ @M 0OZ
e o © e e o () H o~ Le] xXio Mm e = ZZH BEEno
= 0 <0 oH Aamn Z 3] OHZH <& éomq 135 HHO n>EH
o Q > H HEZ < HH ZNNOHOUL MM HO < QUM H
B EHOM a9 JAX<<0O0 e < OO0 s5n0 VDO mzZ= H SpeH ZEH <
10003 M §DBOmH POz ZHOOMW 4 ZEEAEKEEBERO K HHH> O0O3H
nzH AEey AZHHAEH Z2 HZO HEHOOHNAOO <AHODODNH H @m>> HE D
HHEAMMD H «-DMEAD O004dADH SGONI0ZZ H BHHREONODOZ a0 B BHOMO
EORHDHNNZOO Hoqmwzmmmoo§o¢mzqwmmqmmm< WDHEMLO <LEHEKW
MSO0NH Z<0V0D U0 HZH HMEEHONNCA OFADEMRESMNA KOO0 DOHW
| MmO ZEgn éémmqusm B NE>SCAM0 MO E K H Mol
HEHAREROHDODODVDOD A HOOMEBH ~AHHS AQO HREEBOZ>ODMEEH
EADOOOHNEMEEAMNCHEREN HHMMOZZZO0Z IX mzZaAanabhHH BEH >
B AQaQAK DDDmZADZI~UZ§ UOOOBO§ HRAMHHHH EONEREENZ HHH
hmHHHHmzmmmOMOOMOE ON P> Eﬁm REAHD HONNNNnN ~ Z0DDKOIXMKZ
He MmO ZZZHA00AC>S HEJ Z > 8mmHmmmmmmmmmo NUNENEOOH
Zonmmmm FEEDMOH HEHANZZARBEHN - DD>BEBBBBM&M§Z<<>HwBHO
ZNZZZZ> ZZZUUBZSEOBmmEBH>>mUmZOUngDDDDHmm SEHEAHENOOM
HOMMHHEEHODDDUHOPDEHHREAHHHHDHHOO <HEKMSO0000MHTHO MM Z [ H H H
PEOMMMMMMNAAASE S S S Z0AAMAAMAOKEKEEENNNNNNNNNNNNNEHEHEHEHDS S>> >
cs.—oon.m\mwmmmNmmmmoo\ov\oo\\ouoo‘—-‘—‘—uomcnvmvmq—mmwvl\hoowwovmovvm
mx—t\t\L\z\comcol\coowro-—mmuomc\c\mmooomoo\ooomv‘—mmowcom‘—mr-—mno‘—m‘—\o\o
NO NM 0 OHWwOoON oM NN~ OONNNS——NON—O—MOMSLNNN S — e — LD
O — N - [e)] [e)} —
o o o o
o o (&) (&)

ONO—ANMIHNOSOVNO—NMINOSOVNO—NMHNOSVNO—NMPLOOSONO —NMH LN ~0 N
MOV P LO OO LO LD LD LD LD LD LD O O O O O WO WO OO O I~ [~ [~ [~ [~ [~ [~ [~ [~ [~ 00 00 60 60 00 00 00 00 00 O
| gl g i it g Sl i et i et S i i St i S St i e St e e e e e St e e et S e S S S e e el e S L S S n N
ottdeieielelololololololololololololololololololololololololololololololololelolelolole oo o o e o T=)
ol eftejleftefNelNelNelNelNellelNelNe oo NoNo Vo Vo Vo Vo JNeo Ve Ve JUoJe Ve JUo TV N TUo X Uo T Vo JUo T o N N Uo X Uo N Vo Vo TVC R Ve R UG R Vo R Ve X o X o T Ua T Uo R Vo 1o Vo)




oh T
@.m S bt % lgoe-LI-€
B . leoe-Li-¢

“QILSNLAY SY STIVIOL IAFHS 90T ATMIIM AHI STVNOF -¥L°%08'82¥% TYIOL HHL
"QIININNDO0A ATSNOIATYd ¥O MOTAE QALSIT SNOILJIOXE HLIM INIWAV ¥O0d FALSIOAY SIHI HAOYAAY AGHEHAH T
00" 7L %08'8Z% TVIOL TYNIA
00° TVLOL Add
7L %08'8Z% TYIOL MOHHD
00" TVLOL HOV
00" PL %08°'8Z¥% TYILOL SSYTID
00° LRE LZ20Z/91/¢€ 000 *ONI‘AT1ddNS OINV IHOI¥YM £€6 96L09
00" 0L ¥%LP 120Z/91/€ 000 SASIIIIAINT WODATOM 0Z9 G6L09
00" 66°0%L"L LZ02/91/€ 000 NO¥D ALIAVS OITdNd YIWLIM 8L8 ¥6L09
00° S8 vzl L20Z/91/¢€ 000 ANIONT MOIYAAOE SWYITIIM 666666 €6L09
00° G6°98¢ LZ0Z/9L/€ 000 09¥Yd STTIIM 666666 26L09
00° 00°001L LZ0Z/91/¢€ 000 A¥IVYT A¥YM 006 16L09
00° 00°001L L202/91/€ 000 S MEYANY Q¥VM L9¢ 06L09
ILNNODSIA INNOWY qALVA SSYTID MOANIA #ANIA #MOHHD
LZ0Z/91/€ - @3ed 3o9Yd LEIGE: L L-AWIL

dOVd €0/1202 - Pd3dY JALSIDAY MOHHO d/¥Y ALNNOD 9¥NENINNT LZ0Z/LL/E g001dY




L

FOvd

€0/120¢

Pd3dov

00°

oot

[elololelololololsle]le o]
[elelololelololelolele o]

LNNODSIA

*@dLsSALAy SY STIVIOL IIIHS 0T ATMEEIM HHI STVAOE =
*QEINTINND0A ATSNOIATYd ¥0 MOTHE QILSIT SNOILJHEOXH HLIM INIWAVd ¥04 YHLSIOHEY SIHI HAOYAAVY AHYHEH I

66°08€ 62 TYLOL TYNIJI
00" IVIOL Xdd
66°08€ ‘67 : TYLOL MOZHO
00" TVIOL HOVY
66°08€ ‘62 TYLOL SS¥TI0
00°002 LZ0Z/LE/E 000 NO
00°088'2 L20Z/LE/E 000

L8081l LZ0Z/LE/E 000

08°61L 1202/ LE/E 000 HONVY
S6°8L 1202/ LE/E 000

€L°2S LZ0Z/LE/E 000

06°%9 1202/ LE/E 000

62°LSL LZ0Z/LE/E 000 HATI
005228 ' 62 LZ0Z/LE/E 000

91°9€§ LZ0Z/LE/E 000

62 °8%% 'L LZ0Z/LE/E 000

INNOWY qIvda SSYTID

LZ0Z/LE/E - @3ed 3O3YD
YILSIOAY MOHHD d/¥

i -

66°08€ ‘67 TYLOL HHL
INA LIQIED VINIODVIA
DITVYA
d¥0DVYA
ASNI FAIT YILOSANNIW
ATIIHSTYOIT

T TTIVA, AN _SONINNIL
ALIN0OF HITVEH

T TYNOILYN NYOddIVIA
SE09 WHHINV
SLIJINIE HIVLSTIVY
OVYT14VY

JOANIA

e~ —— N~
SO NOO—
OO0 — —

)

[e))

(o))

OO —NMPNOrS
NN OOOOOOOO
£~ [~ [~ 00 €O 00 00 ©0 C0 00 O
[elelolelolololelolele]
((el¥elNo NejNe]No Ve JNo e No Vo]

70:LL:0L-FNWIL
ALNNOD OYNENINNT LZ0Z/0E/€

g00Ldv




ce:Sl
o€

-L0°o0LL‘9zvzl
S e i = AT Al B

-7€ %S0 ‘'¥9¥
-Z208€9 L
16°CvL e
-29°669 ‘85
-65°CL¥'Y
-L9°LLS'9
-9L°%G2'861
-6G°92L'06L
=LLTLYLiZS)
-G69°€66 09
0S°2ZvS’LL
-08:%99:681
-G¥*808°9
-08°8G6¥%‘Z¢€
-68°969°062
-€L°698°L
-$9°9%L’'Z¢€
-16°28%'997%
-Z€ %07 979
-9L°€€0’'6¥
-12°G2%'886°'8

Lo-oLL’9gr L
Lo-oLL‘9zv'zl

€750 ‘'%9¥
G9°€66°09
L0"6l6
71 %96 °80€
99°G6G€‘61T°1L
LZ €20'0LE 0L
00°00%
00°000°2
mozmqmm
ONIANZ
ANIL
qOV *

=%62E6/5E€E T

-76°2€6'SEE’T
=elnLe

=6E
=008
=09

nom
aNMn

9

0l
o
O NNWO

R
1 Mo~
0 MO
—0——
~ omN
—or~
-

~
@
wn
-

-¥8 VEVLL
=95k

-06° LY
-00°009S
-90°SEV ‘S

-68°566'92S

-G8 SPV 1L9L’T
-G8 Gy 191°T

=L0°LE0 2T

LIdEIO

ZL 659'12€'C
z1°689°'Lze’'T
EL VL6

00°S29

8L°998

09" LzETe:
78 86L°1L

1974809
197 €97 81
0€° 971 '8LE
L9 6lL L1
LOI6LLISLL'T

GG°GE
ELT0E9'SLLT

-6L°9€R‘ZLV ‘T
-6L 9€Ev‘ZLV L
-G6°000'%9%

SN

.o

~ ~
-—

|
98
-—

.

)
. o
A

|
NO~ NIFM—OMOO N
O~ NSoOnoNOWn ~
nNMAN OMOODTN O
IR
OO ANNOWLNSO MO

~MMN ~OVOVOY MO

nos o~ongvtrvwn oo

et o~ O™M O— O
(]

© O =

~
~

-—

.
—
-—

noy O
O v
e
ocw VW
B0 ™
O oy
~ ~
LN N
O~
oo i AR
o N
—

.

— N
.
— M

ocomMunn ors
)
ooNso OO

OO0

HONVIVE
SNOIATYEd

1202/82/2

LIIHS HONYTIVE
AINNOD DINENINNT

FONVIVE ANAd INIYIND TYIOL
TINLIANIIXH TVLOL
INNFATE TYIOL

HONVIVE aNAd dX J0I¥d TVIOL

yx SedueTed USED xx
Uunoooy 3ITPSID JUSIIND Y3 TeIMUOWWOD
soueTed ysed vdI

soueTeg ysep a2IeJToM Teroads
2oueTRg YsSeD 90TAISS 3gad
soueTed YsSe) UOT}ONIJISUOD TOOYDS
aoueTeg ysep AeTin0o Te3rded
soueTed yse) aUTYOeW DUTIOA
soueTed yse) IaaesajIT 309loxd
soueTed YseD oNOSay /3T
soueTed YseD 3OV SHIVO
soueTed ysed VSO
eoueTed YseD VdA

soueTed YseD 300q3X®aJ TO0YyOS
soueTed YsSeD pood TOoyos
soueTed ysed TooYyos
goueTedg YseD SjuelH ASd OTWOUODH
souereg yse) juswdoTsa®( OTWOUODH
ooueTed ysep 3xodaTy
soueTed Ysed I9MOJL TT=D
soueTed ysed ||l6d
soueTed YseD 2In3T2JI0J 3}SSSY
soueTed ysed AIeIqrT MeT
aoueTed yseD S93TS TTTIPURI
2oueTeRg YsSe) UOT3IONIJISUOD M/S
soueTed ysed JWOW 23SeM PTTOS
QoueTed YseD punj jUSWSSaSSed’y
soueTed Ysed pung TeIauso

xx SooueTed YSeD xx

SIHISSY TVIOL

xx S}OSSY xx
¥al - JIewyouag

UoT]TPPY SHD - JUNODDV JVUNS
300q3X9L TOOUds - IfIewyousd
pood Tooyos - IIewyouag

g0Z0C S9TI®S V¥SJA - 3JUNODDY JVNS
auel] g0S0 - JUNODDVY JVNS
UOT3IeBTITW TTTIpuUeI-3Iewyodusd
jueg SN - juauwjsaaur utaded
butyoayp Iewysusag
ysed A3jad
9DTFJO UT Ysed

xx S3}9SSY xx

xx A3JTTTQRIUNODDY ISINSEIDIT, xx

NOILAI¥OSHEd
INNODOY

xx KA3TTTIRIUNODOY IDINSEDIL xx
*x0L0TOx

[elolelelolels)]
=
[ololololole el

slolelolelele]

(a2 152 Lo B o Sl S g
MMM MMMM MMM MMM MMM MMM

O —— NONO O
| R A Y e S e G ]

OCNNORMINO—NWVONMONOWSEOOLNO— NN
OoOMMNMMr———ANNNNNNNWOO
e NANNNNNNNNNNNOM

lelelelolololololelolelolelololelelale =]
|

[eleleleloloclololelelelelolole ol o]

[sl=lelelelololololelalalololelolele[ele]

S0LL-001
GGEL-00L
€5921-001
ZGsZ1l-001
0Z%¥0-001
GGE0-001
GELO-001
Z0L0-001
00L0-001L
0L00-001L
L000-001L
YIGWAON
LNNODOY
666-# ANNJ

L2/20/%




98°9¢ bS'LZL'99 9% 8LZ FLL LS 66€E'SL 00°000°L8L 00°000°L81L X --TYIOL aNnd--

-98°LZ -00°ZL9°L 00°2L9°L 00° 0070009 0070009 xx SYIOM OTTING x»»  0€0FZ
80°6€ ¥S €6£'89 9%°909°901L LS"66£°SL 00°000°SLL 00°000°SLL xx JUDW 93seM PTTOS xx  02Z0ZL

xx ONUDASY JWOW M/S xx SEL-# ANAI

00°00L 00°000°SZ 00" 00° 00°000°SZ 00°000°SZ --1¥L0L ANnd--

00°00L 00°000°‘SZ 00" 00° 00°000°SZ 00°000°SZ *x UL SI9ISURIL xx 0SOLP

xx ONUIADY JUSWSSOSSeaY xx ZEL-# ANNI

L0°S¥ LO"LE6'LZE'Y €6°98€'610'9 ZE'OLS'6LF 00°PZE'LP6 0L 00" PZE'LP6 0L --TV10L aNnd--

00°00L 00°958°60L 00" 00° 00°958'60L 00°958‘60L ¥y dDUeTeg PUNJ JO 3SO xx  6666F
00°00L 00°000°0SL 00" 00" 00°0000SL 00°000°0S1L *x UL SI3ISURIL xx  0S0LP
0Z'8LL 00°ZL9'L6 -00°ZLL Pl 00° 00°00S‘LL 00°00S‘LL xx K3193es OTTANd xx  OLOEE
vE"TZL 9€°555‘2¢€ v9'bPRZL 00° 00°000°S¥ 00°000°S¥ x» SODTAJIIS SNOS8Y pue 2ITI xx  0Z0WC
0L €2 99°Z1s'1Z ¥ETZ09'LL 00°¥90°92 00°SLL'E6 ; 00°SLL'E6 xx £393eg OTTANd xx 01002
SZ 0% 9v vLB'ES ¥STZ9% ‘vl ZPUL9E‘LL 00°LEE 80T 00°LEE'80Z ¥» 3INOD JTNDATD JO XIBTD xx  OLOEZ |
00°00L 00°00S§'LE 00" 00° 00°00S‘LE 00°00S‘LE xx Jex}stbay xx  090€Z
ST EP 0S°6Z1'0% 0§°L¥9CS 9 LEL'L 00°LLL'Z6 00°LLL'Z6 ¥x IBINSEL xx  0VOET |
9L Lb 8L°282'vE 22°686 '8V LSTLLL'9 00°zLZ €8 00°zLZ'E8 ¥x ONUSASY JO IDUOTSSTUWOD xx  0EO0ET
0L 6% LS'9L¥'Z8E < 6% LLE'96E LE"LL6'8S 00°v6L‘8BLL 00°v6L'8LL g ¥x FITI3YS xx  0Z0€T
88°LE 0L 6VE'P8 06°ZLE'BEL 66°888'VpL 00°299‘z22 007299222 xx Kour033v S, yjTesMuUONWO] xx  (LOEZ
(404 85°20L'6¥ TP 62S'0€0°L €2 LES'LSL 00°Z€9°'6L0"L 00°Z€9°6L0"L »x DTV TeOTIOBajeD-UON xx 01022
=EEINE T ~LERGRY L LE" 856 ‘8E 68°908°2 00°EEE’LE 00" EEE‘LE ¥y ONUDASY SNOSUBTTAISTH xx 06681
-00°00L -2ZL°298'S z1L°298'S v6°6%9 00" 00° ¥x SPUTIdY xx  0E08IL
8L LY ¥8°910°L 9L7€E8Y L0 bL 00°00S‘L 00°00S‘1L ¥ Kou1033¥ yiTesmuouwwod saBIeYD xx  0Z09L
LE"SE pE VST L 99°162°'C LE"WZT 00°9%S ‘€ 00°9%5 ‘€ ¥x SISOD 37NOD xx  0LO9L
LO" PP 26°€88°¢€L 80°919°LL 6L VLS8 00°00S‘LE 00°005°LE xx K3zedoag 3o esn woxd onuEARY xx  0Z0SI
26°PS 9L wLLPT 78°582'02 -LS VEZ'S 00°000°S¥ 00°000°S¥ xx ASUOW JO @sn wWoxg dnUsASY xx  0L0SL
88°€F  €8°8BEV LL°19S LL° 802 00°000°L 00°000°L > ¥x S99J DUTSS8001d xx  0POPL
LL"8S 18715192 6L°8v8'8L 29°989°¢€ 00°000°'S¥ 00°000°S¥Y : »¥ S9INJTIJIOL B SIUTI x»  0LOPL
-S0°¢L -10"€0S‘L2 LO"€0S'9Z€E 00" 00°000°S0€ 007000 ‘S0€ ¥y ONUIASY TTTIPURT TEOOT xx  EEOEL
-92°6 -1L"89z'c LL"89L'9Z 98°L¥8 00°00S ‘P2 00°00S ‘¥Z ¥x SOSUSDTT JIBYJ0 ¥ SITUIS xx  0EOEL
0z°62 00°0€L 00°0LL"L 00°0€2 0070052 0070052 ¥x S994 TAUUSY ¥ SSUTJ TeUTUV xx  0ZOEL
S8°ES 00°0LL'E A 00°0€Z‘€E 00°06L 00°000°L 00°000°L A ¥x SISUSOTT TeUTUV xx  O0LOEL
SS°PL 0S°6¥L'8 05°0S8°LY 6L°709'S 00°000°9S 00°000°9S xx STTTM % UOTIePIODdY UO S3XBL xx  0LOZL
L8°82 69°GLL'S LE"RZZ DL Ly LYv9'Z 00700002 00700002 ¥x Soxel A3TTT3IN Jaumsuod xx  0Z0ZL
78°€Z S8°SEL'88 SL°p98'182 6Z°9€L'09 00°0000LE 00°000°0LE ¥ SOXB] 3S)1 ¥ S3TeS Te00T xx  0L0Z1L
L9 PE ¥6°LLY'PE 90°2Z€’'Ss9 99°1s2'8 00°000°00L 007000001 ¥¥ 1S9IS3UI % SBTITRUSL xx  090LL
L8°6€ 257668 LE 8% vhL'8Y L’ 00°000°08 00700008 xx Tejrded s, jUeUdISW xx  0S0LL
LT ZS LZ 9LE'9PL : €L EZ9'EEL 00" 007000082 007000082 i ¥xx STOOL ¥ AIoUTHO®W xx  0KOLL
0€°8F  Z0°9ZL'6LL'L 86°ELZ'B6LL 86°vZE'0€ 00°000°‘8LE‘Z 00°000‘8LE‘T xx K3zedoag Teuosaad xx  0E0LL
LL GE z79°18Z'LL 8E° 8L TVL 00" 007000022 00°000°022 ¥¥ 9OTAISS OTTQNd »x  0Z0LL
GS'8% 96°960'799°1L PO €06°2Z9L'L LP89G‘LL 00°000°LZP'E 00°000°LZV E ¥ SOXel Y xx oLt

. ¥x ONUSASY pung TeISudd xx 00L-# ANNJ

QILOITTOONN. FONVIVE LNOOWY LNOOWY LNOOWY LNNOWV NOILJI¥OSHEa #1LO0OV
% a-i-x INIWEND “gdav 13oang
120z/82/2 - 0z0zZ/L0/L
(40114 EWIL AYVWANS FONIATY

3 Fovd AINNOD O¥NENINNT *¥VY090TO% 1202/20/¥



8L°86 LE'ZhLLLY 69°LS8'S 00° 00°000‘€8¥ 00°000'€8Y
L8 L8 LE"ZPY 2V 69°LS8'S 00" 00°00€ ‘8% 00°00€'8¥
00°00L 00°00L'VPED 00" 00" 00°00L‘VEY 00°00L'PEY
00°00L 00°00£‘8% 00" 00° 00°00€ ‘8% 00°00€°8¥
00°00L 00°00€£‘8¥ 00" 00~ 00°00€‘8¥ 00°00€‘8¥
19°86  00°8SL'SS9 00°2¥2'6 00° 00°000'599 00°000°599
00°00L 00°000°SS 00° 00° 00°000°SS 00°000°SS
66°86 00°8SL'V6S 00°2v0‘9 00" 00°00Z ‘009 00°00Z'009
-pL°L  -00°002 00°000°€ " 00° 00°008‘2 0070082
L L6 00°008°‘9 007002 00" 00°000'L 00°000°L
€0°0Z 82°259°'29 ZL°L66'6¥T ZZ°180°LL 00°059°ZLE - 00°0S9°ZLE
00°00L 00°0S9°'ZZL 00° 00" 00°0s9‘zzZL 00°0S9°2ZL
-LS"LE -ZL"L66'6S ZL"L66'6VT 7z 180°LL 007000061 00°000°061
-00°00L -8% €9L 8P €91L P9 L 00" 00"
-00°00L -SZ°PPL ST bl 00° 00° 00°
-00°00L -€Z°61L €276l 9L 00° 00"
-PL EPS -0F"LEV'S 0F"LEV'6 06° LY 00°000'L 00°000°1L
-pLEP8 -0F LEV'S 0% LEF'6 06°L¥ 00°000‘L 007000°1L
SZ°86 18°910'€6€ 6L°€86'9 00" 007000007 00°00000%
00°00L 00°000'00% 00° 00° 00°000‘00% 00°000°00¥%
-00°00L -6L°€86'9 61°€86'9 00" 00° 00"
QALOITTIOONN FONVIVE INOOWY LNOOWY INOOWY INOOWY
% a-I-x LNIYIND “¥dav L3oang
1z02/82/2 - 020Z/10/L
ZE:GL AWIL AYVWANS SNNIATA
Z 3OVd

AINNOD D¥NENINNT

--T¥I0L aNOd--

¥y UI SJ9jsuexl
xx S3URID 000eqO]

xx A9Y pung sjuers AsQ OTWOUODF

--TVLOL aNOd--
»x UI SIagsuexy
xx ONUIAY ASQ UODE
--1IV¥I0L aNnd--
¥¥ UI SIagsuexy
xx juer 3xodaty
¥y ONUIAIY SNOJURTTIISTH
xx K3azedoag Jo osn WOIJ SNUIAY
xx Onuaady pung 3xodiaty

--TVYI0L ANnd--

xx UI SJajsuexl
¥ XeJl SUOT3edTUNUMOD

xx ONUIASY Pung |163
--1IV¥IO0L aNnd--

xx TeI9pPaJ - 2IN3TAIIOL }ISSY
¥x 3S8I93UI

xx ONUIASY 3INJTSIIOL 3}9SSY
--TVIOL aNnd--

»x S3S0D 3aInod

xx onuaAdy AxeaqrT me
--1IVI0L aNQJd--

xx UI SJajsuely
xx ONUBADY STeS S33ITS

x¥ ONUSA3Y S33TS TTTIPUeT

NOILAI¥DSAA

*¥¥090TOx

¥
*¥

¥

*¥*

*¥

>

*¥
¥

¥

*x
¥

*¥

*¥

*x

¥
¥

*¥

0S0LY
06072

9ZZ-# aNnd

0S0LY

GZZ-# aNNd

0s0LY
06072
06681
0zoslt

LZzZ-# aNnd

0S0L¥
€1022

SlZ-# aNna

0L0EE
0LoSL

PLZ-# ANOJ

0Lo91L

€LZ-# aNnd

0S0LP
0Z0L¥

LEL-# aNNJ

1202/20/%




-Z6°ZLL -L9 EPS’L0Z'L

-00°00L

€6°G8

9219
LL"¥6

-00°001L

0L 8€E

0Z°8S
LE"LE
S0°S€E

-00°001

-00°00L

-00°001L

-00°001

66°8%

vL°69
16765
60°0%
26°v6

%

€

-00°00L
-00°00L -68°L9E‘OL
-00°00L -SO°¥PPS‘9
-00°00L

L9°165°'S92'2 v6°SLL 00°¥S0‘%90°L 00°%S0‘¥90°L --TI¥L0L aNQd--
-p9°ZLL -85°GGS'86L L 8676092922 00" 00°%S0‘'%90°L 00°%S0‘P90°L »xTRISPAL - IOV SHIWOx»
-60°886'C 60°886°C v6°SLL 00" 00° Butyoayd uo 3s|IJUI
¥x9NUIADY PUNI 3OV SHAVOxx

0L LLP'E08 06°82S‘LEL S9°L6L'ZL 00°000‘S€E6 00°000°S€6 --TYI0L ANOJ--
€0°0Z6'0¥L L6°6L0'68 €2°L89'LY 00°0000€Z 00°000°0€2 ¥¥ UL SIBFJSURAL xx
ZL°96%'€99 8Z°€0S LY 81L°95%'¥Z 00°000‘S0L 00°000‘S0L *¥ 93838 - ¥SD xx
-G9°Sv6 G9°5¥6 vZ°PpS 00" 00" »x TEOO0T - VSO x»
yx ONUIAY PUNJ VSD xx

$0°S86°'9%b 96°¥L0‘80L SZ"6ES'E0L 00°000°SSL L 00°000°SSL’L --TVI0L aNAd--
15°968°L0L 6V EVLEL 9L ¥¥8 b2 00°000‘SLL 00°000°SLL ¥x UL SI9JSURIL xx
88°LEV'9LZ ZL°295€9¢€ 6E°9LP'SH 00°00008S 00°000°08S xy D9d - AJ9G TeTO0S % SIBITM xx
SL*6EZ'0VL 62°09L'652 0L"8LZ'EE 00°000‘00¥% 00°000°00% xx 93B3}5-AJIS TeTO0S % SIRITIM xx
-0L"6bS LL 0L 6BS‘LL 00° 00" 00° ¥x AI9G 00§/9IRITOM 103 SOOBIEUD xx
¥¥ ONUIASY PUNI VdA x»

-00°9%L‘L8 00°9FL L8 SZ'EPL'OL 00" 00" --TV¥I0L aNad--
-00°9%L L8 00°9¥L’L8 SZ'EVLOL 00° 00° ¥¥ 93e35-UOTIEONPH xx
xx ONUSASY pUNd XOOQ3XdL TOOUDS xx

-22°859'909 227859909 S§9°206'LL 00" 00" --TV¥I0L aNAd--
-1 685'68S LV 685 '68S 0F 1L68‘LL 00" 00" Texspad pood Tooyds
68°LIE‘OL 00° 00° 00" @3e3s pood Tooyds
S0°PPS‘9 00° 00" 00" xx UOTIeONDE I0F SabIeyd xx
-L8°961 L8951 Sz LL 00" 00" xx KouoW jo esn WOlJ ONUSASYH »»
xx ONUSADY pUNJ POOJ TOOUDS xx

ZETTLL'EV9'6 89°99€‘LE0‘OL 60°0%0‘LSE’L 00°6L0'1L89'61L 00°6L0°L8961L --1YI0L aNAd--
8L LV6'VEY'T NN.th.mh—~F -1G'€S8°8S1L 00°00L‘0L8'E 00°00L‘0L8'E ¥¥ UI SI9JSURIL xx
LZ 60L'SLL L €L7€0L"98L 06°LEY'0SZ oo.ﬂen.—om.e 00°€LZ‘196"L xx TRISPDJI-UOTILONPT xx
L2 €12'88€E’S 6L FLL'1LS0'8 ZL7098°9S2°L 00°8Z6‘6EV‘EL 00°8Z6'6EF‘EL ¥x 93@}5-UOTIeONDPH xx
90°Zhb 'Sk $6°S6L'ET 86 V6E'S 00°8€Z'69¥% 00°8€Z'69¥% xx UOTIeoNpd I0J SabIeYD xx
¢ xx ONUDASY pund TOOYDS xx

QAIOETTOONN  FONVIVE INNOWY INNOWY INNOWY INOOWY NOILATI¥OS3A
a-L-Xx INTRIND “¥d4av 139an8
1202/82/2 - 020Z/10/L
ZE:S1L EWIL XEVWANS SNNIATY
aovd AINNOD O¥NENANNT ¥¥¥090TO«

0E0EE
0L0S1L

08Z-# ANOJI

0S0LY
090%2
0LL9L

29Z-# aANnJ

0s0Ly
0L0€€E
090%2
0LL9L

09Z-# aNnd

0zove

€5Z-# aNNA

080€€
00LpZ
08191
0L0SL

Z7SZ-# aNnd

0S0LP
080€E
00Lb2Z
08L91L

06Z-# aNnd

#LOOV

1202/20/%




6S° 1L

14

9Z°ZLE

'999°'SlL

bL PEB'000'2Z

¥6°S¥L'890°C

00°L0Z°L99'LE

00°L0Z°'L99'LE

-00°00L -00°LLO'L6L

-00°00L

-00°00L -SZ°LZZ'98L

-00°00L

-00°00L -SS°9€Z'¥

-00°00L

--IYIOL TUNIJd--
--TYLOL AaNnd--
xy SOXel 9WOOUI 23e3S xx  000SZ
xx S9XeJ Pajewtisd xx  000VZ
x¥ 93©3}5-5994 JITIBYS xx 0Z0€2
xx S99d JITIAUS »»x 06681

xx ONUIASY PUNJ YITRIMUOUMOD xx SLL-# ANOJI

-00°00L -LL"69€'02

-00°001L

-00°00L

-00°00L

p9°S

v6°S

I

3

ss°ZL

00°00L

00°00L

-0s°L2

=0S°L

-1S°¢

00"

-00°00L

4

L

--1¥LOL aNnd--
¥¥ S3SOD PIIBA0IN xx 0zo61L
xx KOUOW JO 9sn wo1F onuAAR xx  0L0SL

xx ONUIARY VAI xx SOL-# ANNI

--TV¥I0L aNnd--

xx SOOTAIdS TeToos JOF sabreyd xx  0€08l

xx ONUIAY dIeITOM Tetoeds xx LOL-# ANOJ

--1¥1OL aNnd--
xx UI SJI9ISURIL xx 0S0LY
¥¥ UOTIeONpd xx  0BOEE

xx DUNJ 9DTAISS 320 dNUIAY xx 0ZP-# ANOJ

--1IYLOL aNnd--

xx UL SI9JSURIL xx  0SOLY
xx ONUIAdY pund SUTYORW DUTIOA xx 6LE-# ANOJ

--1TVI0L aNnd--

QILOITIOONN  HONVIVE

4

%

00°LL0‘L6L €L WLE 00’ 00°
-02°56S 0Z°56S 00°L9S 00° 00"
sz LzT’98l 00° 00" 00"
-00°21L 00°ZlL 00° 00° 00"
65 9€2'V EL°LOY 00° 00°
-Lz°ove iz LZ°8%2'12 6€° €S 00° 00"
1L 69€°02 00° 00° 00°
-95°8L8 95°8L8 6E°€S 00° 00"
-86°599 86°599 00° 00" 00"
-86°599 867599 00° 00° 00°
€8°€28'9¥C LL"9LL'LEE L 00°529 00°000°8LS "L 00°000°8LS ‘L
8z°zve'6ze zLLsL'soz’L 00°529 00°000'8EV ‘L 00°000°8EF ‘L
GG 18S'LL svU8Lv’zzL 00" 00°000°0¥%L 00°000‘0¥%1L
00°000°S 00" 00" 00°000°'S 00°000°‘S
00°000°‘S 00" 00° 00°000°S 00°000°S
-00°022 00°020'} 00" 00°008 00°008
-00°022 00°020°1L 00° 00°008 00°008
-20°000°s2 20°000°012 00° 00°000'S8L 00°000°s81
00° 00°000°S8L 00° 00°000°S81L 00°000°S81
-20°000°S2 20°000°S2Z 00° 00" 00"
INNOWY INNOWY INOOWY INNOWY
a-i-x INIHIND R-CCA Lasang
L202/82/2 - 0Z0Z/10/L

aovd

[A%1%

AWIL

ZAVARNS FONIAZE
AINNOD OUNENANAT

J9a€S93TT 30afoag 06681

¥y ONUIASY JOARS9JITT 309(03d xx LLE-# ANNJ

--TYI0L ANNd--
xx UI sIagsuexl xx 0SOLP
xx9Lf ONUIADY SNOSURTTOSTWxx 06681

x«xTe3TdeD S90TAISS Diowd anuUaAdY xx JLE-# ANNI

NOILJI¥OSEA

*¥¥090TOx 1202/20/v




00°00L 00°000°SZ 00" 00° 00° 00°000°S2 00°000°SZ
00°00L 00°000°SZ 00" 00° 00° 00°000°S2 00°000°SZ
L8°%b  9P°898°CL6'¥ 00° ¥S'SS¥'PE0’9 ¥E€°909°SLZ 00°PZE'LYP6'0L  00°HZE‘LVE'OL
29°SS  09°996°L6L'E 00° O EEL'9PS ‘T -25°969'Ss8 00°00L‘BEL’S 00°00L‘8EL’S
8125 0S°¥60°9Z 00° 05°506°€2 0S°8L5'LT 00°000°0S 00°000°0S
0Z'LZ 00°00€£‘S 00° 00°00L‘61 00°529°2 00°000°s2 00°000'S2
-82°LL -PZ'09E'EL 00° ¥Z°099'06 09°0€L 00°00€‘LL 00°00€'LL
LP"ES  9P"8E9'ST 00" pSTL9€‘22 LzTezL’LL 00°000‘8% 00°000‘8¥%
SZ°LZ 6Z°0€E9°L 00" LL*69E'02 00° 00°000‘82 00700082
05°09 96°L69°SE 00° ¥0°Z0E ‘€2 zsT1L8’L 00°000‘6S 00°000'6S
85°81L €2°099°LS 00° LLTSZE 92T 00° 00°986°LLT 00°986°LLE
€9°S2 297218 00° 8E“LBY 'L SL"89 00°000°2 00°000‘2
-€L°9S -LL'6Z6'E 00" LL°626°0L 00'0s8°S 00°000°L 00°000°L
00°SZ  00°0SZ'ElL 00" 00°0SL‘6€ 00° 00°000‘€S 00°000 ‘€S
-00°0Z -00°02 00" 00°0zZL 0002 00°00L 00°00L
€6°62 0S°0€E8'EE 00" 0S°691°6L 00° 00°000‘€ELL 00°000€ELL
62°5Z LeoLeL'Ls 00" €LTzis‘oLl 6L°0L%’ 1T 00° 0¥z ‘822 00°0¥%Z ‘822
ZL'0F  60°ZLE'6E 00" L6°LSL 8S L0°108°L 00°0€L°86 00°0€EL'86
GE'LE 68°SPV'6Z 00° LL PSP P9 818058 00°006°€6 007006 ‘€6
LL°8Z SL°S60°S9L 00" S8°V06'60¥ 00" 00°000°SLS 00°000°SLS
8L LT 9% 86L'0L 00° PSTLP9‘681L 00°S6E'C 00°0¥¥% ‘092 00°0¥¥ ‘092
LB"6E 69°ELB'ZLS 00° LE"980 ELL 86°¥6S°L8 00°006°S8Z°1L 00°006‘S8Z"1L
L9°SE  8L"8TL'OZL 00° 28°669°LLT £€9°828°'92 00°8Z%‘8EE 00°8Z%'8EE
8G°9€ 90°¥10'9Z 00° ¥6°00L 'SP 2P 109°S 00°SLL'LL 00°SLL LL
420 21 13 A 00° ZSTEIL'FL b2 06S‘1L 00°009°12 00°009°LZ
-00°00L -L1°995'02 00" L1°995'02 L6°8E8'EL 00° 00"
-00°00L -00°9¥0°6 00" 00°9%0'6 00° 00" 00"
67°PE  20"TLZ'WOL 00" 86°LL6'L6L LE"EEL'ST 00°052Z°20€ 00°0SZ‘Z0€
12°9L 60°6L8'0L 00° L6-0zL'z2 68°686°C1L 00°000°€6 00°000‘€6
GE'8S 0T ELL 00" 08° 1SS 9P LL 00°SZE‘L 00°szZe’L
€8°1S 99°€¥9'T 00° PET9SK'T ¥S°902 00°00L’S 00°00L‘S
LP°96 91L°GS6'LL 00" 14444 662 00°00%‘ZL 00°00F‘Z1L
9L €T €9°825'02 00" LE"LOL 89 LO"EPE‘L 00°0€9°88 00°0€9°88
SE°LY Lb E6EET 00° 65790092 L5°86S 00°00% ‘6% 00°00% ‘6%
S6°LL 98'8¥Z’‘S 00° PLTLSL09 SETELE’T 00°000°69 00700069
€8°LF  SS°LLB'ZOL 00° SP ZEO'EVL €5°620°¢LL 00°0L6°SPZ 00°0L6°SPZ
L9°9€  09°S6V'08 00° 0v"¥86°8€EL SSULLL'LL 00°08%‘612 00°08% ‘612
20°L ¥6°6ZL L 00~ 90°0LZ zOL SSTLVE'VE 00°000°0LL 00°000°0L1L
ZL'PE  9¥°269°98 00" PSTLLE6'ZOL 8%° 61502 00°0L9'6¥Z 00°0L9'6¥Z
80°LE €0°88Z'8lL 00" L6°LEO'LE 8% ¥96'C 00°0ZE‘6¥ 00°0ZE'6¥
ONINIVAIY FONVTVE INNOWV LNOOWY LNOOWY LNNOWY INOOWY
% QIFIGWNONIANN FONVIENNONT a-L-X INTMENO “¥ddav 13oand
1z0z/82/2 - 020Z/10/L
ZE3S1L AWIL AAVAANS FINLIANIIXI
S FOvd

AINNOD DYNENIANOT

--1VIOL aNOJ--

sobeym uotjezrrenby jo paeod

xx 9suadxy juswssasseay
--1V¥I0L aNnd--

xx SpUNg I9Y30 O SI3FSueay
xx Sjuswaaoxdwr Te3rded

xx 9suadxg sdois AWA

x» S3TJOUSE 9buTIg

xx UOTSU@3}Xd 9ATIeIadood

xx K3TIOUINY ‘ASQ TETIISNPUI

xx Juswdoraaeg 43 TUNUWOD/UODE
»x 3juawdoraasg X3TuUnuUuod

¥x SITWISJ 89S TRUOTITPUOD

¥» Dutuueld

xx uotjetadoxaddy gSD SpPeOISSOIdD
xx JoUTWEXd TedTPal

+x uotjeradoaddy 3jdeq y3tTesH
spunoxp ¥ sburprIng

¥¥ TOI3UOD Tewruy

x» TRTOTIIO ButpTING

xx TTeL TeuoTHay Juouwpatd

xx suotjetradozddy snosay ¥ 2ITd
xx JUSWADIOIUF MeT B FFTIAYS

xx A2UI033¥ Y3jTeamuounuod

xx JOJRUTPIOOD SSSUITM/WTIOTA
»» K3TaInoes esnoyjzanop

xx Spung 3snal ABoTouyodl XIBTD
xx JURID VA JO Aaeiqrl

¥¥ 3INOD FTNOATD 3JO XIITD

¥y 3INOD OT3ISBWOQ/STTUSANL

xx 93eI3sThen

¥x 3IN0D 3JOTIISTA TeIBU3D

xx 3I00D 3TNOATO

xx Jexjstboy

»x DPIeog TexojoeTd

xx DuTSs9001g ejeq

xx JoInseaxy

xx ONUIASY JO IDUOTSSTUMIOD
x¥ SOOTAJISS TRUOTSS33JOoad
¥x UOT3RI3STUTWPY X3juUnod
xx SJostaxadng jo paeog

xx 9suadxy pung TeIsdua

NOILATHOSAA

*¥¥090TOx

*¥

¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
¥
*
¥

*

¥
*¥
¥

¥
¥
¥
*¥
*¥
¥
*¥
¥
*¥
*¥
¥
¥
*¥

¥

0zezL

ZEL-# ANOI

00066
000%6
68716
L00L6
000€8
00918
00sL8
00zZL8
oLLL8
ooLLe
00s2S
00518
00Z1S
- 00Z€EW
00LSE
000%€
00Z¢€€
00F%ZE
00ZLE
ooLzz
0L6LZ
0081L2Z
[A7A%4
oLLLz
oocLLz
00912
00€12Z
ooziz
0oLtz
00ZEL
00LEL
0LszL
oLezZL
OLEZL
oLzzL
ooLzL
ooLtLL

00L-# aNnd

#1LD0¥Y

1202/20/%



LL°€6  0S°LEY'TSV 00" 06°29€'0€ 00" 00°000'€8¥ 00°000'€8%
LL"€6  0S°LE9'ZSY 00" 0S°29€°0€ 00" 00°000‘€8% 00°000‘€8%
L6° %8 LE“ZW0 LY 00" 69°LSZ'L 00° 00°00€‘8¥ 00°00€ ‘8%
L8°L8 LE TPV TV 00° 69°LS8'S 00° 00°00€‘8¥ 00°00€ ‘8%
-00°00L -00°00%"L 00" 00°00%‘L 00° 00" 00°
LS°L6 1Z°688'8¥9 00" 6L°0LL'9L 8L°958 00°000'S99 00°000'599
LS L6 12°688'8%9 00" 6L°0LL 9L 8L 958 00°000‘599 007000599
-10°2F -G9°6SE’LEL 00° 59°600'PPP S5°186°LZ 00°0S9°ZLE 00°059'ZLE
00" 00" 00" 00°000°s81L 00" 00°000‘S81 00700081
-06°20L -S9°6SE’LEL 00" §9°600°652 SS°186°1LZ 00°0S9‘LZL 00°0S9°LZL
-00°00L -¥8°86L € 00° $8°86L'€ $8°86L°1L 00° 00"
-00°00L -¥8°86L°€ 00° ¥8°86L'€E ¥8°86L°L 00" 00"
00°00L 00°000°L 00" 00" 00° 00°000°'1L 0070001
00°00L 00°000'L 00" 00° 00° 00°000°L 00°000°L
¥6°€6 LL"€BL'SLE 00° 62°912'vZ 19°L8S‘S 00°000‘00¥ 00°000°00%
00°00L 00°000°0SL 00° 00° 00° 00°000‘0S1 00°000°0SL
LET06 LLTEBLSTT 00" 62°912'v2 19°L8S’S 00°000°0S2 007000052
(48 44 ¥6°LP9'EV 00" 90'8SE'LEL 8Z°LbS 8L 007000181 007000181
498 24 V6" LV9'EV 00" 90°8SE‘LEL 82 LVS'8L 007000181 007000181
ONINIVAINE FONVIVE INONOWY LNNOWY INNOWY INOOWY INNOWY
% QIYIGWAONAND FONVIEWNONT a-i-i INIRIND “¥ddav 13oang
1202/82/2 - 020Z/10/L
TE:SL AWIL ANVWANS FANLIANIIXH
9 3OVd

AINNOD S¥NENINAT

--T¥I0L ANnd--

¥xDROM AM 93TS PUl Banquaunyy

--TVLOL ANOd--

¥x Spungd I8Y3l0 O SI8ISURIL
xx Te00T asuadxzy AdQ uodm

yx Sosuadxdg AeQ DdTWOUOdH
--IYL0L ANNd--

xx 330dITVY

xx 9suadxg pund 3xodITy
--I¥LOL dNNd--

xx Spung Is8Yyjo O3 sIaFsuery
xx S2In3TPuadxd L16F B LL6

. xx 9suadxd LL6E B LL6
--T¥I0L ANQd--

xx 9IN3T9IIOJ IISSY

xx 9Suadxdy 2IN3TIIIOL }8SSV
--TYI0L dANnd--

xx Sosuadxy

xx 9suadxg Xxexqr1 meT
--TV¥I0L aNnd--

xx SpuUnd I9Y30 O3 SIeFsueal
xx 9suedxay S93TS TTTIPUET

xx Sasuadxdy TTTIPURT
--TV¥10L aNnd--
xx UOT3IDOITTOD @3seM PTITOS

xx osuadxay JuWOW M/S

NOILJI¥OSad

*¥¥090TOx

«x S9IN3Tpuadxy SIURID ASQ UODE xx

¥
*¥x

¥

¥

**

*¥
*¥

¥

¥

¥

¥

*¥

¥
*¥

¥

¥

¥

81518

9ZzZ-# ANNJ

00066
00018

S§ZZ-# ANNA

ovLOV

Lzz-# aNnd

00066
007 LE

SlLz-# aNnd

00FL6

pLZ-# aNOJ

00612

g€LZ-# aNnd

00066
LZVOV

LEL-# ANNJ

€2h0F

SEL-# ANOJ

#LOOVY

1202/20/%




00°00L 007008 00° 00" 00° 00°008 007008 --1¥10L aNnJd--
00°00L 007008 00" 00° 00" 00°008 00°008 zeAesa3TT 300foad juswdrnba
yx Sosuadxy I9aeSe3ITT 309(0ad xx

0€°9% B8E°659'S8 00" 29°0FE ‘66 00" 00°000°S8L 00°000°S81 --TY10L dNnd--
0€°9v 8€°659'G8 00" 29°0vE‘66 00° 00°000°s81 00°000's81L +x DUNZ Te3ITdeD SIDTAISS DIBUE xx
xx osuadxgrejtded S90TAISS Baswd xx

-09°8€ -06°LL8'OLY 00" 06°LLB'PLY L 0z 1zZv‘LOL 00°%S0‘P90°1L 00°%S0'¥90°L --IVI0OL ANQd--
-00°00L -LS°8SZ'PL 00" LS°8SZ'VL 00" 00" 00° ¥+DUNZ 3OV STUVD IeIISTONMxx
-9Z°LE -€E€°655'96€ 00° €ETEL9'09F L 0z 1Zv’L0L 00°%S0‘%90°1L 00°%S0'%90"L ¥xPUNd OV STUYD AJUNODxx
yxSosuadxy pund 3OV STAVOxx

9Z°Ly  8Z°W06'LPY 00" ZL"S60'E6V S9°L6L'ZL 00°000’SE6 00°000‘SE6 --1¥I0L aNnd--
9Z°Ly  8Z°%06'LbP 00° ZL"S60'€E6Y s9°L6L'ZL 00°000°S€E6 00°000'SE6 xx 9suadxdy pund VSD xx
y xx SOSuUadXd VSD xx

89°'0€ L9 89E'VSE 00° €E°LEY'008 LE"Z69°€0L 00°000°SSL L 00°000°SSL‘L --1v¥10L aNnd--
€6°SE PP 195'092 00° 95" 8EV VIV pS SES‘0S 00°000°S2ZL 00°000°SZL xx ESVE xx
L8°LZ €Z°LO8'E6 00° LL"Z6L'9EE LLT9SL'ES 00°000‘0€¥ 00°000'0€¥ Texepad ¥ d3je}S-SjUBWSSINGSTA
xx SOSUAAXT VAA xx

-00°00L -€5°6LL'S9S 00" €5°6L1°S9S ZL 6E6'E6 00" 00" --I¥I0L aNnd--
-00°00L -€S°6LL'S9S 00° €5°611°G9S ZL 6E6'E6 00° 00° soanjTpuadxd pPood TOoyds
xx osuadxdy pung pPood TOOYDS «xx

66°8F ZE'ZLL'EVI'6 00° 89°99€‘LEO‘OL 60°0%0‘LSE’L 1 00°6L0'189'61 00°6L0°LB9 6L --TYI0L aNad--
00°00L 00°LFO‘L9E 00° 00" 00° 00°LB0'L96 00°L¥0‘L96 ¥x SPUNd JI3Y30 O3 SIBISUBIL xx
-¥0°LZ -LL"L69'002 00" LL"1S9'2v6 LL"869'LE 00°%S6°LbL 00°%S6°‘LbL ABoTouyosy, TOOYdS
00°00L O00°SEQ'LEL 00" 00" 00" 00°SEOQ‘LEL 00°GED'LEL Tedtoutad aseaT TejTded
9€°8E  0L°626'L9¢ 00° 0€°00S’€90°1L 99°9S€‘€91L 00°0€EP‘STL'L 00°0€P‘SZL L soueUSjUTEN ¥ SuOTieIado
9Z°¥S  EETWZB'ZLE 00° L9 VE6 V89 0s°LL8'88 00°6SL L6V L 00°6SL L6V L uotjejxodsueay
65°27 8L°€85'88L 00° 22°686°S¥9 8€°260°S9 00" €LS'PES 00 €LS'PES UOT}eI}STUTWPY
8E°LS  29°566'Z80'L 00° 8€°162°00L'9 8L ¥L0°Z00‘L 00°L8Z'E€8L'EL  00°LBZ'EBL'EL uoT3ONI}SUL
»x SPsuadxd TOOYDS xx

ONINIVAEA HONVT7E INQOWY INNOWY INOOWY INOOWY INOOWY NOILAI¥OSad
% QIYIGWADNENN FONVIEWNONT a-L-i INZRANO “¥ddav 13oand
1202/82/2 - 0202/10/L
(42111 FWIL AIVWANS FTINILIANEIXE
L FOVd AINNOD SINENANAT *¥¥090TOx

00LSE

LLE-# ANDA

00vZE

9LE-# ANNI

008€S
00LES

08Z-# AN

00S€S

29Z-# aNnd

0000S
000LL

09Z-# aNNd

00159

ZGZ-# ANODI

00066
00089
000L9
00079

" 000€9
00029
00019

06Z-# aNnd

#LOOY

120z2/20/%



E€L°CV

ph LBE‘ZLB'SL 00" 95°578'¥6L LT 05°8€9°650'C oo.NoN.hwo.hm 00°L0Z'L99'LE -=-TV¥10L TYNIJ--

-00°00L -00°LLOL6L 00" 00°LLO‘L6L EL°PLE 00" 00" --TYIOL aNOQd--
-00°00L -00°LLO'L6L 00° 00°LLO‘L6L €L PLE 00" 00" xx UjTeoMUOUOD 03 Sadue3jTwed
xy 9suadxg pung Yj[esmuowwuod

-00°00L -LL"69L'2Z 00° LL°691°22 00" 00" 00" --TVIOL ANNJ--
-00°00L -LL"69L'2Z 00° L 69L’ze 00° 00" 00° »x K3TIOYINY ASQ TRTIISNPUIL
. xx -9suadxy pund vaI

-00°00L -LP €E0E’L 00" LP"E0E’‘ L -00°0€ 00" 00" --TVIOL aNnd--
-00°00L -LP €E0E’L 00" LB €0E'L -00°0¢€ 00° 00° xx Sosuadxzy axejTeM Tetroads
xx Sosuadxy 9IxejTeM Teroads

¥8°0L WP SLL LLL 00° 65°928°900 ‘1L 00°529 00°000'8LS "L 00°000‘8LS"L --T¥I0L aNOJ--
90°9L 68°L68°0LL 00" LLzoL‘c6s 00°s29 00°000'%90°L 00°000°%90°L xx TOOYDS 80TAISS 3q2d
S0° 28 LLe 00° 8p ZZL'ELS 00" 00°000°PLS 00°000'%LS ¥ 9SNOY3INOD ¥DTAISS 3q3d
xx PuUnd 90TAISS 3qaQ

-00°00L -LL"190'9 00" LL"190'9 00° 00" 00" 4 --1IVI0L ANNd--
-00°00L -LL°190'9 00" LLTL90'9 00" 00" 00" xx Tooydos Kerino Te3rded
xx 9snoyjanod Kerino teirded

00°00L 00°000°S 00" 00° 00" 00°000'S 00°000°'S -=-TYIL0L aNOJ--
00°00L 00°000°S 00" 00" 00° 00°000°S 00°000°S x» Pung suTyoew DutloA
xx Sosuadxy pund SUTYORW DUTIOA
ONINTVHEY  SONVIVE N w— axnowe -~ F— R—

% QIYIGWNONINN FONVIEWNONE a-L-X INTIIND “¥gd4av 13oand
Lzoz/82/2 - 020Z/10/L
ZE:S1L EWIL AYVANNS FFNLIANIIXE
8 aovd

AINNOD DINENENAT *¥¥090TO«

**

**

¥

00616

SLL-# aANNA

00918

SOL-# aANOJE

00001

LOL-# aNNJ

0LESE
00€S6

0Zp-# aNna

LLEDE

0Ze-# aNnd

(4449

6LE-# ANQA

1202/20/¥%




$COLLECTED

NET A/R

OTHER ADJS NET PAYMENTS

THRU 3/31/2021
PAYMENTS

NET TAX

_TREASURER TAX COLLECTION RATE SCHEDULE REPORT-

ABATEMENTS

PPTRA

TAXES

4/02/2021

Mmoor~-NO
WONOVO

o TN
~OIT0OOrs
Ao OD

26

3

2

0
30521:21

o 1o O P 0
OSSO =0
—OOONOO
SN
ONOOON—
O~O—OInH
OMNMNI> I~
—~N0Nw ™M
— MO N

— O

138

4

5

1

0

1
14753252~

I
omnwooo ™
——ouno O
R RS .
— Mo
s~ O
—OoOmMomMm ™

—Ooun  ~

™ <

| I

@ [o¢]

™ ™

. .

< s

(132] ™

N -

~ ~

o~ N

Te] [Te}
OO —
VOM—OOM
T S L
M— MO
N —ON— O
NO S~

—umna O
]
%Bﬂu—'lx
SR>
e ot e s

PP2016 1 MH
HALF TOTALS

tHIFOOO0OOM
~oOoYoown

~osYoors
OO O OO

— -

o o [,
OO
—~—00

— O M
e
— oM

41812.86-

522618.69-
522618.69-
1049753.07-

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS

97 5710

59462.88

2525135.84-

13102.94-

2512032.90-

2584598.72

89211.49-

3723563.28

tHFO—0OOON
VOMANNOO
R e N s
~ONNOX0
OO
— —

< omno O
TR = fo > S
. o, % e .
N Oouwn
~ NnNo ©
N oom O
omom O

= N

N OO — (NN

OO0

Ne—N— O
oo}

1
tONWO ™M
=N ™M

RSN .
— O AN
O——MmM O
N D

-~ O
A <
I I
(o] O
(o] o
— —
o~ (o]
e} [Te}
(o)) (o))
o~ o~
[Te} n
De—HIFONN
———NO WO

eiat e ey TR W
Ne—>inoot
SN —
00 < YN 00 H O
NN

E%BQ«—INU)
R g )
<
kb =
(]

- 1=
o =]
o~ =
A <
a1 e

[teTgiNoXe))
~oownm

oMo
oo
oNo ™M

WMOOLON
oo™
o e e Wb
WO N0
oOoNOn®o
NN H O
NN
—— <0

o -

=

$750, 1
—JO n
nnwo o
a v 10 .
aATo ™
ouwn O
~ < ©o

0~
=
NN
A
NN

97591
97.66

57466.75
64544.81

2698491.96-
2699660.05-

10398.76-
9618.69-

2688093.20-
2690041.36-

2755958.71
2764204.86

33768.40-
82870.73~
132741.71-

527064.00-
1047524.08-

1056585.66-

3895415.10
3944470.65

2%2

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS

PP2018 1 MH

1 MR
1 MT
1 PP
1 VL
1 XX

HALF TOTALS=
DEPT TOTALS=

.86-
456~

r~o
[ealc o)
N

—




$COLLECTED

NET A/R

OTHER ADJS NET PAYMENTS

3/31/2021

N RATE SCHEDULE REPORT-
PAYMENTS

THRU

NET TAX

-TREASURER TAX COLLECTIO

ABATEMENTS

PPTRA

TAXES

4/02/2021
34

M — OO
HHLF OO

M-~ 0w
OO

o
e~

nN—O
N
N
oow
ol 55

50052.68

|
—cO I~
o O
oty W .
ooMm
N—O
o
e} T
st
MNAN—LIM
or~-LoNO
ShRe- e ne
— WO MO
woONON
—omMmM
MNe—O
n<ro

— ~
I
HAaXN
Sa>Kd
I
K
O
o)} B
=
o =
o~ =
[ <
[N s

oaM~mors
NNOMOWO
e e e
~~NMNOW
OO
=
N~ O
NN ©
Kl B P
o~ —
ooow
N~ O
NNO W0
Mn o~

2 H2
2 P2
2 R2
AP
2 X2
HALF TOTALS=
DEPT TOTALS
PP2020 1 MH

96.84

1050293 .38~ 240303.64- 3035249.43 2930550.99- 8703.90- 2939254.89- 95994.54

4325846.45

N— NN — O™
SOOIV OO
R s T
WO OWO
OO O O
—

oM VWYO
SO~ O

OO — N>
Moo
MNMANONO
—mM
e

63668.49

O~—O0
< — OO~

I

~BnYvo
oItNIFO N
o A0 % .
oOmoown ™
Ne——0N O
oo ©
oo~ O
M~ D

| |

o o

o o

. .

o o

wn Te]

™ (58]

(o)) o

()] o~

wn [Te]
WO~ OO
oWV ONN
R W AT R
— NN
M~0Ooo
WOOVLINMM

1 MR
gH o
1 PP
1 VL
15 XX

HALF TOTALS

43490.97-
104354.21-

525081.85-
1054431.94-

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS
PP TOTALS

94.47
96.87

165151.58
442620.56

14825.75- 2823431.32-
13685974.06-

2808605.57-
13629324.02-

2988582.90
14128594.62

4147369.05
20036664.53

56650.04-

649481.78-

5258588.13-

20036664.53 5258588.13- 649481.78- 14128594.62 13629324.02- 56650.04- 13685974.06- 442620.56 96.87

COMP TOTALS




1

TR712

PAGE
$COLLECTED

OTHER ADJS NET PAYMENTS NET A/R

3/31/2021
PAYMENTS

31291
31291

THRU

NET TAX

-TREASURER TAX COLLECTION RATE SCHEDULE REPORT-
31760

ABATEMENTS

PPTRA

TAXES

2521.08
2521.08

81135
31,735

44417.73-
44417.73-

—O—

— <0

OoONN
n Mmoo

31760

3703.76~
3703.76-

1 RE
HALF TOTALS=
DEPT TOTALS
RE2012 1 RE

RE2011 1

3129143.70- 44417.73- 3173561.43- 2521.08 99.92

3176082.51

3703.76-

3179786.27

oM
[e)e)}

(X))
(1))

HALF TOTALS

9810.20-

10688.25-

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS

RE2013 1 RE

99.93

2166.55

3182101.58- 3191911.78-

3194078.33

3204766.58

MM
(o))

[l
(Yo}

ocMmmM
o

<
NN
D
s

HALF TOTALS

oM
(1))

[eale)}
[e1e)]

onm
AN

<
NN
=
e

~r~
Vo

oo
e

c=t>

elle]

2:R2
HALF TOTALS=
DEPT TOTALS
RE2014 1 RE

3215134.31 3196456.16- 16429.69- 3212885.85~ 2248.46 99.93

16552 .21~

3231686.52

oM
aN

<
aN

—

HALF TOTALS

oM
[exe))

[ele)]
[e]e)]

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS

RE2015 1 RE

13522.296~ 322515528~ 2248.46 99.93

3211832.32~

3227403.74

11517 .56~

3238981.30

-—c

[eae)}

[T}
[eale)}

HALF TOTALS

—

(Yo}

(1))
(1o}

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS

RE2016 1 RE

99.91

3231055.:42~ 14039.14- 3245094.56- 2985.43

3248079.99

8960.37-

3257040.36

oo
()] o)}

o
[e)e))

HALF TOTALS

oo
[e)1e)]

[exe)]
(Y]

HALF TOTALS

3236679.92- 17760.61- 3254440.53- 3175.28 99.90

3257615.81

11898.33-

3269514.14

DEPT TOTALS
RE2017 1 RE

oMM
[colee)

[eafe))
[e]e)]

[tolte
oo

o~~~

-—

NN

HALF TOTALS

NN
000

[l
[e)1e)]

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS=

99.83

5608.77

3257853.17- 14625.47- 3272478.64-

3278087.41

9011.97-

3287099.38




$COLLECTED

NET A/R

OTHER ADJS NET PAYMENTS

THRU 3/31/2021
PAYMENTS

NET TAX

_TREASURER TAX COLLECTION RATE SCHEDULE REPORT-

ABATEMENTS

PPTRA

TAXES

T

{{eliNe)

(X))
(o))

RE2018 1 RE
HALF TOTALS

o~
<+

(1))
[e)le)}

2. R2
HALF TOTALS=
DEPT TOTALS
RE2019 1 RE

99.54-

3488451.54 3459879.75- 12487.59- 3472367.34- 16084.20

10991 .22~

3499432.76

o o i

|

(1))
(o)1)

o~~~
~r~

o~
NN

—

HALF TOTALS

mnwn
[celee]

[solee]
(o)}

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS

RE2020 1 RE

99.00

3511319

3467366.57-

3452752.87- 14613.70-

3502479.76

5830.62-

3508310.38

[exYe)]

e

@
[e)]e))

s
oo

[Tolle]
o
(o)} o)}
——

[saleg}

HALF TOTALS

HALF TOTALS
DEPT TOTALS
RE TOTALS

97.66
99.53

82578.01
154729.43

3441817.99-
32957079:.97~

19955.69-
177662.78-

3421862.30-
3377947 Sh 9=

3524396.00
33111809.40

4337.26-
93541.55-

3528733.26
33205350.95

33111809.40 32779417.19- 177662.78- 32957079.97- 154729.43 99.53

93541.55-

33205350.95

COMP TOTALS



N

e Performed shoulder repairs on various routes.
e Replaced cross pipes on various routes.
- e Pothole patching on various routes.
e Cleaned pipes on various routes.
e Cut limbs and brush on various routes.
e Machined NHS roadways and hauled stone as needed.
e Performed litter patrol on various routes.
- o Checked various routes for maintenance and safety issues.







State Sales Tax

State Funds

Federal Funds

Cares Act Funds

*CRF Funds

Cares Set-Aside GEER
**County Funds
***QOther Funds

Total Revenue

Total Instruction
Adm, Att & Health
Transportation
Maintenance
School Food
Debt/Transfers
Technology

Total Expenditures

Instruction:
**Textbooks |

* NOTE: Subject to revision
** Adopted Middle School English Textbooks will be ordered in Aprll

Lunenburg County Public Schools

Budgeted

1,877,448
11,509,324
1,961,213
465,285
266,980 .
400,748 .

3,810,700 |
469,238

' .- l

! Peroent 1

FISCAL YEAR 2020-21
Revenue - Expenditure Report
3/31/2021
Revenue
) Fiscal
CurrentMonth _ Year-to-Date
148,861.48 1,230,755. 98 i
1,061,854.06 8,123,188.24 |
123,507.54 928,618.56
194,210.00 364,977.47
~0.00 266,980.00 |
92,017.05 224,851.70 1
000 _ 0.00
3,314.48 33,811.34
i i
1,623764.61 11,173,183.29 |

20,760,936 .

* CRF - Coronavirus Relief Funds
** County Funds are used each month as needed to cover the difference between revenue and expendltures
l

Budgeted*

_13, 721, 380
130, 000
13, 851, 380
864, 858

1,502,759 |

|
i

!

Expenditures

. Current Month I

1958249'

980,041
131,035

1,472,614

20,760,936 |

"~ 1,044,435.42 ;

238.40 |

1,044,673.82 | '
61,357.60
T 80,045.25

170, 207. 15
5380602

344,426.12 _;
|

1,754,515.96 '

I
Fiscal : _ Percent l
Year-to-Date Balance " Used
‘
7.736,544.70 598483530‘ 56.38%,
842050 12157950 . 6.48%)
7,744,965.20 | _ 6,106,414.80  _55. 91%|
667,662.54 197,195.46 | 77.20%.
764,979.92 | . 737,779.08 | 50.91%
1,233,707.45 72454155 63.00%:
658,600.83 1 321,431.17 | 67.20%;
, o710 131,03500 0.00%)
1,287,077.23 | 185,536.77 87.40%
v .
12,357,002.17 | 8,403,933.83  59.52%

__ Balance Recelved |
646,692.02 ! ' 65. 55%
3 386,135. 76 - 70; 58%
1 032 594 44 47. 35%
100 307 53 i 78.44%:
0 00 l 100. 00%1

175 896. 30
3, 810, 700 00 0.00%
435,426.66 . 7.21%.
9, 587 752. L l 53.82%!

{ CODE _

61000
62000
63000

64000 |

65000 | _

67000 !
68000




Period Ending March 31, 2021

CARES FUND

— o - . - » o - . - F|scal -
Budgeted*  CurrentMonth  Year-to-Date _

Instruction o - e
Adm Att & Hea h s 413889 A
Transportation e Sin A - -
Maintenance Sl A e e el
School Food 102 253 38 ] - e 102 253 38
Technology 358 893 194 210 00 ki 258 585 80
Total Reimbursement 1465285 194,210.00 364,978.07 _
* Subject to Revision )

$ 465,285

Cares Reimbursement

CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS (CRF)

$ 266980

Percent

Balance Recelved

- 100.00%|

CRF Reimbursement

Instruction

Adm Att & Hnalth
Transportatlon
Maintenance
School Food
Technolo_gy

Total Reimbursement

* Subject to Revision

CARES SET-ASIDE (GEER) $400,748.35

Instruction

Adm Att & Health
Transportatlon
Maintenance
School Food
Technology

Total Reimbursement

* Subject to Revision

Cares Set-Aside Reimbursement

S A Flscal
_ Budgeted* _ Current Month ‘Year-to-Date
12,857 - 12867
45,715 - 45,71 5
116,279 - 116,279
17,356 ' - 17,356
75,074 - 75,074
266,980 - 266,980

- s e . - - s me s . F'scal .
Budgeted*  Current Month Year-to-Date
109,757 1,227.21 7,596.62
6492 _707.62
42,819 105.00 11,383.00
241,680 90,684.84 205,164.84
400,748 92,017.05 224,852.08

- 100.00%

100 307 72 05%

100307 78.44%
2 e Percent
Balance Recewed

~_100.00%

=

- 100.00%

- 100.00%

- 100.00%

- 100.00%

- Z100.00%
 Percent
Balance  Received

102,160  6.92%

5,785  10.90%

31,436  26.58%

36,515 84.89%

175,896 56.11%




VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION



County Office and Department Reports



Elizabeth Y. “Liz” Hamlett
Commissioner

11512 Courthouse Road, Suite 101
Lunenburg, Virginia 23952

Jeepone COMMISSIONER OF THE REVENUE A . Mkl
i COUNTY OF LUNENBURG i

(434) 696-4023 Deputy

March 19, 2021
Dear Veteran,

Thank you for your service to our country. Iam pleased to inform you that the General
Assembly has amended the Constitution of Virginia and Title 58.1 of the Virginia Code to allow
for exemption of one motor vehicle.

Enclosed you will find the application for personal property tax exemption for veterans with
100% service-connected, permanent, and total disability. Please complete the enclosed
application and return it to our office as soon as possible. If your application is received by
April 15, your tax bill will reflect the exemption. If the application is received after our personal
property bills are sent to the printer, your bill will be incorrect, but we will make adjustment(s)
accordingly.

The exemption applies only to one motor vehicle (an automobile or a pickup truck). If you have
previously submitted supporting documents for the real estate exemption, you do not need to
resend the required documentation. You must, however, return this application, noting which
vehicle is to be exempted.

Please feel free to contact our office if you have any questions. We are available Monday
through Friday from 9:00 am to 5:00 pm.

Sincerely,
¢ ) Cyp 2
Jv ’%]/ﬁ%//‘
Liz Hamlett
Master Commissioner of the Revenue




APPLICATION

PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION Need Assistance?
FOR VETERANS WITH (434) 696-2516
100% SERVICE-CONNECTED DISABILITY E-mail:
cor@lunenburgva.net

Elizabeth Y. Hamlett
Master Commissioner of the Revenue

11512 Courthouse Road
Lunenburg, VA 23952
APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name (ApplicanUOwner): Social Security #: Phone #:

Name (Co-Owner — if applicable): Social Security #: Phone #:

Address (primary situs of vehicle): Mailing Address if different than Property Address:
Vehicle Year, Make, Model Vehicle Title Number or VIN

CERTIFICATIONS

Certification from U. S. Department of Veteran Affairs of 100% Service-Connected Disability:
attached OJ on file with Commissioner of the Revenue [
Is this vehicle taxed in another locality? Yes 0 No OO

Privacy Act Notice: Disclosure of your social security number on this form is mandatory, as authorized by the
Virginia State Code Section §58.1-3017. Social security numbers are regarded as confidential, and except as
otherwise provided by law, will not be disclosed for any other purpose.

I (we) declare, under penalties provided by law, that I am not receiving this exemption in another Virginia locality.
Only one vehicle is exempt from taxation. (Title 58.1-3668)

I (we) declare, under penalties provided by law, that this certification has been examined by me (us) and to the best of
my (our) knowledge and belief is true, correct, and complete.

Signature of Applicant/Owner Signature of Co-Owner/Spouse Date

Signature of Preparer (if not applicant) Relationship Date

Day Time Phone Number

Rev: 1/21




QUALIFICATIONS:
« Disability of Veteran must be 100% service-connected AND permanent AND total.
« DMV record must indicate the situs of the vehicle is Lunenburg County.
+  Spouse/co-owner (if applicable) must also be identified.

REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION*:
« Certification of disability being: (a) 100% service-connected, AND (b) permanent, AND (c) total;

* Photo Identification;
+ Proof of residence occupancy, such as a utility bill, tax bill, or bank statement;

*If you have already qualified for the exemption of real property in Lunenburg County, you do NOT need to
resubmit documentation for the personal property exemption.

Code Reference
§ 58.1-3668. Motor vehicle of a disabled veteran.

A. As used in this section, "motor vehicle" means only an automobile or a pickup truck.

B. Pursuant to subdivision (a) (8) of Article X, Section 6 of the Constitution of Virginia, one motor vehicle owned and
used primarily by or for a veteran of the Armed Forces of the United States or the Virginia National Guard who has
been rated by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or its successor agency pursuant to federal law with a 100
percent service-connected, permanent, and total disability shall be exempt from taxation. Any such motor vehicle
owned by a married person may qualify if either spouse is a veteran who is rated as 100 disabled. Any locality may
establish procedures for a veteran to apply for the exemption and may enact any ordinance necessary for
administration of the exemption.

C. This exemption shall be applicable beginning on the date the motor vehicle is acquired or January 1, 2021,
whichever is later, and shall not be applicable for any period of time prior to January 1, 2021. The exemption shall
expire on the date of the disabled veteran's death and shall not be available for his surviving spouse.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Owner of Record:

ACCT NUMBER:

Qualifies? Yes O

No O If no, explain why:

Year & Make Model VIN (last 4) Value

Tax Rate:

Total Taxes

Amount of Relief

Initials: Date: Documents attached O with RE file O

Rev: 1721




Nicole Clark

From: Wanda Barnes <wbb@lunenburgva.net>
Sent: Friday, March 26, 2021 1:43 PM

To: nicole@lunenburgva.net

Subject: Surplus Office ltems

Nicole,

Here are some surplus items we have. Some | have already put in the building out back

Treasurer Surplus Office Items

3 old office chairs already in the building out back
6 old phones already in the building out back
4 old keyboards already in the building out back
1 broken copier This needs to be moved to the
building
Thank you,

Wanda B. Barnes, MGDT
Chief Deputy Treasurer
Lunenburg County
P-434-696-3354
F-434-696-3447




BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Charles R. Slayton, CHAIRMAN
Election District 4

Frank W. Bacon, VICE-CHAIRMAN
Election District 3

T. Wayne Hoover
Election District 1

Mike Hankins
Election District 2

Edward Pennington
Election District 5

Alvester L. Edmonds
Election District 6

Robert G. Zava
Election District 7

Lunenburg County Administration
11413 Courthouse Road
Lunenburg, VA 23952

Tracy M. Gee
County Administrator

Telephone: (434) 696-2142
Facsimile: {434) 696-1798

Animal Control Report to the Board of Supervisors

Date:/4~|'ar'- { ", 7202

The following activities were conducted by Animal Control during the month of m R (Jﬂ 202] .

6— Stray Cat(s) Picked Up
2 % Stray Dog(s) Picked Up
Injured or I11 Cat(s)
Injured or I1l Dog(s)
| 2_ Cat Calls Dispatched
47 _Dog Calls Dispatched

| 2 Cats, Surrendered by Owner
2.O Dogs, Surrendered by Owner

Cat Bite
2. Dog Bite
Cat(s) Euthanized
Dog(s) Euthanized
2.  Cat Trap(s) Set
2 Dog Trap(s) Set

Summons Issued

Animal(s) Released to ACO
Expired at Shelter and/or DOA
I $Y Telephone Calls for Animal Issues
33 Check License
Lost Cat(s) — Incoming Calls
Lost Dog(s) — Incoming Calls
Cat(s) Returned to Owner
Dog(s) Returned to Owner
2_ Quarantine
Adoption—Dogs
Adoption—Cats

D. Ray Elliott
Animal Control Officer

$_3_3_O:;__Surrender Fees
110

$ Impoundment Fees
$ Adoption Fees
R
$ Ll L{ - Total Fees Collected

2% Dog(s) Transferred to SPCA
[ [ Cat(s) Transferred to SPCA

2. Wildlife Call
_Z;_Q_ogsTrZo\;?e/(eJ 4o R chmond dnmel Leagee

Q 2« Total Number of Animals Handled




Piedmont Area Veterans Council
Sarah Maddox



0z0z Asenuef

o\

(81T0z-£102) u10gs0 ,Au0ys, pieydry

(6T0Z-8T0T) P3N siuuaq

0co¢
19133|SMaN
Atenuer

(0z0z-6102) ydjopuey sejdnoq

SNjIaWg JUapisald
udjooM Aey

Buppoaip sawer

3PLGIIA Sewoy |

104 Aer
sauly ,20r,, ydasor

sajeds ,Aui89, pjesao

SI9qUiajy pieog AJeI0UOH
19q98yiey saeyd

SYIIH sewoy|

SN

Ny

NN2ASUOH Yoer s ;;}2
R

*J§ poomieH HOIS
Apmoq p|euoy

Ase1a103s ‘uapsie Ajjod
Jainseal] ‘uung piemp3
1uapISaLd IIA ‘Aydinig uinay
juapisald ‘Apuey Aouinp

s109a11Q aAGNIaX3

$10193.1Q JO pJeogd DAV 0Z0T

TIDNNOD SNVYY3LIA VIHY LNOWA3Id




310 £9105 14O ‘ , 21313\ €3.Y

[I2UNOY SUBJIBIBA B3Iy JUOWpPald

‘dsexapul/juawadedua/an /A0 eA MMM
//:sdqy :spieog Juawadedu3 uelldA Ajlunwwo) noqge
UOLEWIOJUI I0W 104 °S3I|IIR) INO 3SIel pue HIoM ‘an|

M 319yM S3W02NO UL}/ anoidwi 03 AjaAEI3||0d Buryiom

salpuase [edidiunuwi/ajels/|elapay pue ‘siapjoyaiels ‘sa2INIBS
1©20] JO Joeduil 3ALIIY|0 Y} AZIWIXEW Jey) SH0Y3 paseq

-Ajlunwiwod ui a8e8ua AjpAgIe 3\ 'SIOAIAINS pue ‘s1am3
-a1e) ‘saljiwey AJejijiy ‘SUBIIIA 10 AIAIIP DIAI3S anoud
-Wi 0} |33 [B30] Y} 1€ 32IAI3s Ul sded dA|0s3I 0} YI0M pue

51208 Ayunwwod 1o SulAjuuap! ul AJIOA IARII|OJ € Se HJOM

aM ‘sSupaaw pieog Juawadedu] uesdlap Ajlunwwo) ino

1€ sn uiof 0 s1apjoyayess pue ‘siapiroid 3diIA13s Ajlunwiwod

‘591220ApPE UBIIIIA ‘Saljiwey Aejijiy ‘SI2qUIBWDIAISS ‘sue

-1332/\ ||© S2)IAUI AJ[BIPIOD |I2UNO) SUBIAIIA €3LY JuoWpald

020z ‘ST Asenuer

193dey) 3jawrey

S04N0S3Y

(93n0) paeog : :
juawafedu3 uesdlap Ajlunwiwo) JAVd ARl @ .. N SOAI/ SUBIAIBA J0 diysmoj|34




Nominations and Appointments

Workforce Investment Board Nominations
John Mahaney of Kenbridge Construction
Trisha Currin of Southern Dominion Health System
Term July 1, 2021 —June 30, 2021




FY2021-22 Budget Discussion

County staff is preparing a list of requests to be provided at the
meeting. Virginia Loggers Association and Virginia Crossroads
have requested to speak on their budget request. |




Tracx Gee

From: info valoggers.org <info@valoggers.org>

Sent: Wednesday, March 24, 2021 4:30 PM

To: twhoover@lunenburgva.net; mike.hankins0060@gmail.com; baconfw@longwood.edu;
edwardwashington50@icloud.com; aledmonds3527kv@embargmail.com; Tracy Gee

Cc: simmonslogging@gmail.com

Subject: Re: Forest Harvesters Tax Relief Request

Importance: High

Mrs. Gee and Honorable Members of Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors,

VLA continues its efforts to help Virginia logging business owners by requesting exemption
from the machinery & tools and personal property taxes on forest harvesting equipment.

Our logging companies are the least able to continue making the tax payments and yet are key
to entire forest products industry. Before landowners can reap any returns from their timber
investments or mills can make any of the essential products for our homes, loggers must harvest
and haul these raw materials for processing.

Despite higher finished lumber prices, loggers are not recipients of higher returns on the raw
products. Weather and mill quotas continue to hurt our loggers' production.

VLA would appreciate the opportunity to speak with the Louisa County budget committee to
explain and make our appeal for exemption.

Would you please allow us the opportunity for our logging community?

Thank you.

Ron Jenkins

Executive Director

Virginia Loggers Association
cell: 804 - 677 - 4290

email: info@valoggers.org

We work in an industry responsibly using renewable natural forest resources while helping people and the
environment!

The Virginia Loggers Association proudly endorses Forestry Mutual Insurance as the preferred provider of

Virginia worker's compensation insurance. Contact Chris Huff at chuff@forestrymutual.com or 919 - 810 -
9485.




From: info valoggers.org

Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2021 8:35 AM

To: twhoover@lunenburgva.net <twhoover@lunenburgva.net>; mike.hankins0060@gmail.com
<mike.hankins0060@gmail.com>; baconfw@longwood.edu <baconfw@longwood.edu>;
edwardwashington50@icloud.com <edwardwashington50@icloud.com>; aledmonds3527kv@embargmail.com
<aledmonds3527kv@embargmail.com>; Tracy Gee <tgee@lunenburgva.net>

Cc: simmonslogging@gmail.com <simmonslogging@gmail.com>; dustorsim@gmail.com <dustorsim@gmail.com>
Subject: Forest Harvesters Tax Relief Request

County Administrator Tracy Gee and Honorable Members of Lunenburg County Board of
Supervisors,

Virginia Loggers Association requests the opportunity to speak on behalf of Virginia forest
harvesters and officially request exemption of forest harvesting equipment from machinery &
tools and personal property taxes.

The new state law authorizes localities to amend its tax ordinance to provide this tax relief
previously granted to farmers for their farm machinery. Most Virginia localities have amended
their tax ordinance to exempt farm machinery.

The Virginia Farm Bureau of 33,000 producer farmers agreed that agriculture and forest
harvesting were similar enough and that forest harvesters should be allowed the same
exemption on their equipment.

We look forward to visiting for presentation, public hearing, and your final approval to amend
your ordinance.

Attached is our original letter of request and the new law.

We have several examples of other County ordinances revised to reflect exemption and happy
to share them with your County Attorney.

Ten counties have amended their tax ordinance adopting the new state law to exempt machinery
& tools and personal property taxes on forest harvesting equipment. These include Alleghany,
Bath, Bedford, Brunswick, Campbell, Goochland, Highland, Pittsylvania, Rockbridge, and
Wythe.

Please reach out anytime if you have questions on this matter.

Best regards,

Ron Jenkins
Executive Director
Virginia Loggers Association




Planning and Economic Development Update

A) Letter from Red Brick Solar arriving before the meeting




IN PARTNERSHIP WITH
The Counties of Amelia | Buckingham | Charlotte | Cumberland | Lunenburg | Nottoway
Prince Edward

CRC March 2021 Items of Interest

New Ventures

e Blackstone Volunteer Fire Department was awarded $4,378.68 in AFG-S Funds to purchase COVID PPE. The CRC
assisted in submitting the application.

e South Central Virginia Nonprofit Network received $1,000 from the Prince Edward United Way to assist the group
with marketing the SCVNN website. The CRC assisted in submitting the application.

e CRC staff assisted Cumberland County Fire & EMS in submitting a RSAF application to purchase equipment.

e CRC staff assisted STEPS in submitting a USDA Application for Community Facilities Technical Assistance and
Training Grant for the proposed regional Tiny Home Emergency Shelter facility.

e CRC staff are assisting Blackstone, Amelia and STEPS in pursuing Congressional Community Funding Project funds
for various projects.

e CRC staff are assisting the Town of Crewe and Drakes Branch Volunteer Fire Department in applying for AARP
Community Challenge Grant funds.

e CRC staff are assisting Prince Edward, Cumberland and Lunenburg Counties in partnership with Kinex to seek
Tobacco Commission funding for broadband fiber buildout.
CRC staff are assisting Cumberland County in pursuing VDOT Economic Development Access funds.

e Next CRC Meeting, Wednesday, April 21, 2021 at 9:30 a.m., Heartland Business Park, 200 Heartland Drive
Keysville, Virginia.

Activity

e Dillwyn CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Project —Construction work on 84 White should be completed in the coming
days. This is the final house for the project. The CRC s working with the Town and Southeast RCAP to seek funds
for 112 Culberth Street as not enough funds were available to complete this house.

e Dillwyn VDOT Streetscape Project — Construction work is complete. The CRC is assisting the Town in closing out
the project.

e Phenix Water System Project — The Town is working with the well driller to frack an existing well and are currently
running a flow test to find out if it produces enough gpm to be acceptable for Town use. The CRC is still
coordinating the environmental review process.

e Regional Emergency Planning — The CRC has completed the Regional Joint Information Center Plan and is
incorporating county staff input. Staff are working with county emergency managers to gather feedback before
finalizing the Regional Resource Inventory.

e Lunenburg/Kenbridge/Victoria VHDA Housing Study — The CRC will assist the County in closing out the project.

e DEQ Watershed Implementation Plan (WIP) Il Assistance: The CRC has notified localities of grant opportunities.

e Prince Edward County Access Road Project Administration: The CRC participated in a Project Scoping meeting with
VDOT, County officials and the Project Engineer on March 26",

e Nottoway County Comprehensive Plan: CRC staff will be holding a Kick-Off Meeting with the Nottoway Planning
Commission Comp Plan Team on April 19"

e CRC Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: The CRC have put together the project management team and will
be planning a kick-off meeting in the coming months.

e CRC Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan:

e Update on CRC Economic Development District Designation: EDA has indicated the CRC’s EDD Submission package
has made it through review at the Regional office and is now at the EDA headquarters office for final review.

A~ Lauren Stuhldreher indicated it may take up to 6 months for the final review process.

COMMONWEALTH REGIONAL COUNCIL
One Mill Street, Suite 202, P.O. Box P
Farmville, VA 23901 | 434.392.6104

Prepared 4/1/21 www.virginiasheartland.org




@ GENTRY LOCKE i ok NECETVE

F: (540) 983-9400

BY:

onn

Attorneys P: (540) 983-9399 MAR 2 6 zuZ

I

U

March 26, 2021
By Hand Delivery, Overnight Delivery and E-mail

The Honorable Charles R. Slayton
Chairman, Board of Supervisors
Lunenburg County

11413 Courthouse Road
Lunenburg, Virginia 23952

Ms. Tracy M. Gee

County Administrator
Lunenburg County

11413 Courthouse Road
Lunenburg, Virginia 23952
tgee@lunenburgva.net

Re:  Red Brick Solar, LLC
Petition Appealing Planning Commission Action

Dear Chairman Slayton and Ms. Gee:

On behalf of Red Brick Solar, LLC (the “Applicant™) please accept this petition
(“Petition”) for appeal pursuant to Virginia Code § 15.2-2232(B). The Applicant requests that
the Lunenburg County Board of Supervisors (the “Board™) make a determination that the
Applicant’s proposed solar facility and substation is substantially in accord with the Lunenburg —
Kenbridge-Victoria Joint Comprehensive Plan 2019-2024 (the “Comprehensive Plan”). The
Applicant’s reasons for the appeal are enclosed.

The Applicant submitted a revised application for a Conditional Use Permit (C-5-20) on
October 8, 2020 (the “Application”) for the construction and operation of a utility-scale solar
facility and substation as a “Public Utility, Major” (the “Project”) under the Lunenburg County
Zoning Ordinance. The Project is planned to be located on approximately 21 parcels in the
County. The Application included a detailed explanation of how this Project supports the vision,
goals, and strategies identified in the Comprehensive Plan. The relevant excerpt from the
Application is enclosed.

The Lunenburg County Planning Commission (the “PC”) considered the Applicant’s
Project pursuant to Virginia Code § 15.2-2232 at its meeting on March 16, 2021. The PC was
provided the standard of review under Virginia Code § 15.2-2232 and reminded that this review
was limited to the determination of whether the Project was “substantially in accord” with the

10 Franklin Road SE, Suite 900 Roanoke, VA 24011 = PO Box 40013 Roanoke, VA 24022-0013
Toll Free: 866.983.0866

27789/4000/9824902v2




@ GENTRY LOCKE

March 26, 2021
Page 2

Comprehensive Plan. After a presentation by the Applicant, a public hearing, and deliberation,
the PC made a motion to find that the Project was substantially in accord with the
Comprehensive Plan, specifically referencing the following elements of the Comprehensive Plan
in support: (i) Special Policy Area: Solar Facilities and that the County should consider the safe
development of solar energy, (ii) the Applicant’s detailed explanation of the efforts to protect
and preserve the natural resources of the community, land uses, the environment and adjacent
properties, and (iii) the rural and secluded nature of the area of the County in which the Project is
planned. The PC reached a tie vote of 3-3 on this motion, which resulted in a failed motion.

As a result of the failed PC action and in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2232(B),
the Applicant now requests that the Board make a determination that the Applicant’s Project is
substantially in accord with the Comprehensive Plan for the reasons set forth in the Application
and the Grounds of Appeal.

The Applicant respectfully requests that the Board place this request on the agenda for an
upcoming meeting within the next 60 days. The Applicant’s representatives will be prepared to
explain the details of the proposed Project and to provide additional justification to support the
finding that the Project is substantially in accord with the Comprehensive Plan.

Regards,

ENTRY LOCKE

Jginathan D. Puvak

Enclosures

cc:  Frank Rennie, Esq., County Attorney, Lunenburg County (via E-mail only)

27789/4000/9824902v2




Grounds of Appeal
Red Brick Solar, LLC
March 26, 2021

1. The Planning Commission failed to reach a decision on the Project and therefore the
Board of Supervisors has authority to overrule the Planning Commission.

Virginia Code § 15.2-2232(B) provides, in relevant part, as follows:

The commission shall communicate its findings to the governing
body, indicating its approval or disapproval with written reasons
therefor. The governing body may overrule the action of the
commission by a vote of a majority of its membership....The owner
or owners or their agents may appeal the decision of the commission
to the governing body within 10 days after the decision of the
commission. The appeal shall be by written petition to the governing
body setting forth the reasons for the appeal....

The Lunenburg County Planning Commission (the “PC”) considered the Red Brick Solar, LLC
(the “Applicant”) solar facility project (the “Project”) pursuant to Virginia Code § 15.2-2232 at its
meeting on March 16, 2021. The PC was provided the standard of review under Virginia Code §
15.2-2232 and reminded that this review was limited to the determination of whether the Project
was “substantially in accord” with the Lunenburg — Kenbridge — Victoria Joint Comprehensive
Plan 2019-2024 (the “Comprehensive Plan”). After a presentation by the Applicant, a public
hearing, and deliberation, the PC made a motion to find that the Project was substantially in accord
with the Comprehensive Plan, spe?ﬁcally referencing the following elements of the

Comprehensive Plan in support: (i) Special Policy Area: Solar Facilities and that the County
should consider the safe development of solar energy, (ii) the Applicant’s detailed explanation of
the efforts to protect and preserve the natural resources of the community, land uses, the
environment and adjacent properties, 4nd (iii) the rural and secluded nature of the area of the
County in which the Project is planned, The PC reached a tie vote of 3-3 on this motion, which
resulted in a failed motion. The Applicant now has the right to seek a determination from the
Board of Supervisors as the governing body.

2. The Applicant has demonstraLed that the Project is substantially in accord with the
Lunenburg — Kenbridge — Vic‘Foria Joint Comprehensive Plan 2019-2024.
\

The Applicant has reduced the size %f the Project based on public and County feedback. The
Project has been in the planning for sqveral years. In 2020, the Applicant submitted a revised
application that reduced the overall size of the project by several hundred acres. Further, the
Applicant has committed that the total acreage within the Project’s fenced area will not exceed
1,118 acres. Notably, the Applicant has removed land that was on the northern side of the Project
above the CCC Road over concerns thai this portion of the Project was the most prolific land used
by a local hunting club. |

27789/4000/9824922v2




«  Fulfills recommendation for safe development of solar energy (Special Policy; Page 121).

Lunenburg County adopted its Comprehensive Plan in the summer of 2019. In doing so, the
County identified solar energy as a “special policy area” and point of emphasis under the
Comprehensive Plan. This is the first Project to come to the County for public review after the
adoption of this Comprehensive Plan. This Project is ideally situated and planned to provide
alternative energy and minimize impacts to land uses, properties, and the environment. Notably,
the Comprehensive Plan also values consideration of this Project “for economic development
purposes.” We believe that this is one of the few sites within the County that is ideally suitable
for this type of development.

« Protects and preserves the natural resources of the community; maintains a balance
between development and preservation (Special Policy Area; Goal. Pages 116, 130).

This Project has been planned in a secluded portion of the County and solar cnergy isa Solar
project do not permanently alter the land and the land can be returned to timber or another use at
the end of the Project’s useful life. The Applicant’s engineers have analyzed potential impacts to
protected natural resources and cultural resources following guidance issued by DEQ. Based on
these findings, the Applicant does not anticipate significant adverse impact to protected wildlife
or historic/cultural resources.

Solar facilities ensure the planting and maintenance of native grasses on all developed land.
Stormwater and runoff management is regulated at the federal, state, and local level. In order for
construction to take place, the Project must conform with all state laws and regulations and will
have infrastructure in place to protect against potential impacts during construction and operation.

«  Promotes the expansion of a diversified economy (Goal, Page 123); Attract new industries
to the County (Strategy 2, Page 124).

Solar energy is among the fastest growing industries in the nation and is especially vibrant in
the Commonwealth of Virginia. Many employers are requiring sources of renewable energy when
deciding to locate new facilities. In addition to the tax and revenue share revenue over the life of
the Project which is estimated to be $12,100,000, an independent economic analysis of the impacts
of the Project have estimated significant opportunities for construction jobs and spending in and
around Lunenburg County.

« Promote a clean-living environment (Objective 6, Page 126).
Solar energy is a passive use that does not produce pollutants. Instead the solar energy
produced by this Project will offset approximately 210,000 metric tons of CO2 annually, equal to

the carbon sequestration of 250,000 acres of trees.

See also attached excerpt from the Applicant’s application materials in support of the goals
and strategies of the Comprehensive Plan.

27789/4000/9824922v2




3. The Staff Report prepared by the Office of Planning and Economic Development
misstated important characteristics of the Project and the application to Virginia law.

The Office of Planning and Economic Development prepared a staff report that summarized
that office’s position on the Application. There are some descriptions of the project in the staff
report that do not reflect the current design. These points have a significant impact on the
conformity with the Comprehensive Plan. These descriptions potentially impacted the PC’s
evaluation of the applicable goals and strategies of the Comprehensive Plan.

+  The staff report states that the Project is located in an area of rural residential and farmland.

The Application property is 100% timber use. There are no current farming operations and
historically this area of Lunenburg County (in the vicinity of the County seat) has neither been
suitable nor historically attractive for farming operations. As a result, this Project is not anticipated
to result in a loss in revenue due to the loss of farming operations. Significant portions of the
Application property have already been cleared for timber and are largely open at this time. In
other localities in Virginia, the majority of solar facilities are located on timber property and the
solar panels can be removed in the future at the end of the Project’s life to allow the Application
property to be returned to timber or other agricultural purposes. There is no residential
development on the Application property and residential neighbors in the close proximity to the
Project.

«  The staff report concludes that “economic impact is transitory and an inefficient use of land
with downside risk for environmental damage to water resources.”

The first goals stated in the Comprehensive Plan relate to economy and employment. Goal #1,
Objective #1 is the “Promote the expansion of a diversified economy.” This Project will have a
meaningful impact on the County’s commercial tax base. This Project will create $197,000 in
additional tax revenues/revenue share in first year of operations and every year over the life of the
Project with 10% increases in this amount every 5 years. This results in a $12,100,000 cumulative
County revenue of the Projects’ anticipated 40 year life span. This estimate includes the real estate
tax and revenue share and does not account for construction spending or the revenues to
participating landowners.

«  The staff report states that all areas covered with solar panels are considered impervious
areas.

The Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (the “DEQ”) does not treat solar panels as
impervious areas. Impervious areas are those that must be designed and treated for water runoff
and for this Project, such locations include: the substation, foundation pilings for the panels,
inverter pads, and roadway surfaces. Based on the DEQ design requirements, the Applicant
currently estimates that only 2.3% of the total site or 1,132,560 square feet will be impervious area
(not the 8,000,000 to 10,000,000 square feet indicated in the staff report). The DEQ standards,
require the Project to treat the final impervious area which will be determined during final
engineering and approved by the Southside Soil and Water Conservation District and DEQ. Solar
panels are elevated and ground under the solar panels will be stabilized and planted with native

3

27789/4000/9824922v2




grasses. Largely based on the incorrect amount of impervious area, the staff report concludes that
“large scale clearing and future runoff pose significant problems for the area.” The Applicant
provided the Planning Commission with a detailed explanation of how this Project will manage
water quantity and water quality and mitigate impacts on Couches Creek and Meherrin River basin.

- Erosion and Sediment Control — During Construction Prior to construction, the
Southside Soil and Water Conservation District will review, approve, and oversee the Project’s
soil and erosion control plan. Erosion and sediment control designs and calculations are submitted
to the county for approval as part of final permitting, with bonding required before construction.

- Stormwater Management — During Operations Stormwater Plans, designed in
accordance with Virginia stormwater management program and the Virginia Runoff Reduction
Method, will be implemented to capture and treat runoff during project operations. Stormwater
design and calculations are reviewed and approved by DEQ prior to construction, with an ongoing
maintenance agreement required between the Project owner and DEQ.

«  The staff report states that the “interior of the site is strongly sloped” and “the applicant
proposes to use the ridge topes for development”.

Page 15 of Comprehensive Plan describes the County as “gently rolling, central piedmont
landscape...” and the Application property is similarly situated. Based on the Applicant’s
preliminary analysis, the topography is suitable for solar and steep slopes (greater than 20 degrees)
will be avoided.

«  The staff report states that the types of soils on site are “highly erodible soils.”

The Applicant’s initial evaluations of most of the soils on this site indicate that the soils are
not “highly erodible.” Soil assessments conducted by the Applicant’s engineers have identified 25
soil types on site, and only 5 are characterized as poorly well drained, which accounts for 7.8% of
the overall Project site. The rest of the soils on the property are moderately to well drained. Only
4 soil types are listed as having a high runoff potential accounting for 9.2 % of the Project. The
types of soils will be addressed in the final engineering design to manage water runoff that will
mitigate impacts on Couches Creek and Meherrin River basin. Based on the soil types it is possible
that the actual development and panels will not be located on any of the soils with high runoff
potential.

+ The staff report incorrectly states that “Current technology utilizes heavy metal storage
batteries requiring specialized equipment for containing electrical fires.”

There will be no batteries or energy storage on this site and that is not part of the Project. The
staff report suggested that the batteries and composition of the panels increased the potential fire
risk. There are a number independent groups that have analyzed these risks including North
Carolina State University. A quote from their 2017 report that specifically reviews fire risks and
states:

27789/4000/9824922v2




However, concern over solar fire hazards should be limited because
only a small portion of materials in the panels are flammable, and
thoseicomponents cannot self-support a significant fire. Flammable .
components of PV [solar] panels include the thin layers of polymer
encapsulates surrounding the PV [solar] cells, polymer backsheets
(framed panels only), plastic junction boxes on rear of panel, and
insulation on wiring. The rest of the panel is composed of non-
flammable components, notably including one or two layers of
protective glass that make up over three quarters of the panel’s
weight.

The Applicant will commit to educate and train emergency response in the unlikely event that
they would need to respond.

The Office of Planning and Economic Development also raised items during the 2232 review
that were not germane to the 2232 review, but rather should be evaluated during the conditional
use permit review process. These items included, but were not limited to: the Applicant’s
commitments to local grant funding and public access trails throughout the Project. Based on the
language in Virginia Code § 15.2-2232, the review at this stage is limited to the “general location
or approximate location, character, and extent thereof...”

27789/4000/9824922v2




all or parts of Delaware, lllinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and the District of Columbia, of which Domirion is a
member. The Project received a favorable Feasibility Report and System Impact Study and entered into a
Facility Study Agreement in June of 2019. ’

Environmental permitting and associated studies are requirements of the Permit by Rule (PBR) through
the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). To date, the Project has completed its
preliminary analysis of impacts to the environment and historic resources. No significant issues have
resulted from any of these studies. The Applicant estimates that it will submit the completed PBR
application to the DEQ in Q1 of 2021.

3.2. Conformity with Lunenburg's Comprehensive Plan

Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia provides that any “public utility facility or public service
corporation facility ... whether publicly or privately owned, shall [not] be constructed, established or
authorized, unless and until the general location or approximate location, character, and extent thereof
has been submitted to and approved by the [applicable Planning Commission] as being substantially in
accord with the adopted comprehensive plan or part thereof.”

The Applicant requests that the Planning Commission determine that the Project is substantially in accord
with the Lunenburg/Kenbridge/Victoria Joint Comprehensive Plan, 2019-2024 (the “CP”). The Project
supports the County’s vision, values, and livability goals, as outlined in the CP.

In short, the Project diversifies the local tax base and provides significant local revenue that are not offset
by demand for public services and its passive use promotes and supports Lunenburg’s clean-living
environment. As a result, we believe that this Project is in concert with the Lunenburg County's
Comprehensive Plan.

Chapter 5 on “Special Policy Areas” directly addresses solar facilities (emphasis added):
Policy Area: Solar Facilities

Solar Facilities are acres of raw farmland covered with solar panels which enable the owner of the
solar facilities to capture sunlight, convert that sunlight into electrical energy and then sell that
electricity to the utility company.

Solar facilities are located in areas with availability of large tracts of land at low costs as well as
available infrastructure (transmission lines) to support additional capacity. The existing land use
of Lunenburg County could make the county’s open areas an option for Solar Facilities. The
County and the Towns should consider the development of alternative energy production while
protecting agriculture, forestry lands and watersheds that the county enjoys.

Alternative energy production may be considered by the County and Towns as an attraction to
expand employment opportunities and for companies interested in supporting solar development
in communities where they are located.

Red Brick Solar LLC — Red Brick Solar Project — Lunenburg County, VA Page |8
Conditional Use Permit Application




Recommendations:

The County and Town Planning Commissions should consider safe development of solar energy
that minimizes impacts to land uses, properties, and the environment, particularly for economic
development purposes. They should develop reasonable conditions for the development of
Solar Facilities which will protect the character of surrounding properties and will not limit
future property development. Any County or Town planning measures which address Solar
Facilities siting should also have an effective decommissioning plan developed and funded by
the Solar developer before installation.

The above “Recommendations” provide four key themes that the Project responds to and satisfies:

1. Develop solar projects in a way that minimizes impact to land uses, properties and the
environment:

The Project location and design, in particular buffers and setbacks, minimize and/or
eliminate the impact to and adjacent land uses and properties. Through the conditions
proposed in this Conditional Use Permit and the requirements of the Permit By Rule
process administered by the Department of Environmental Quality, the Project will
protect environmental resources and mitigate and prevent any impact to the
environment.

2. Solar should support and not interfere with other economic development opportunities:

The Property is located in a rural, secluded area that is not well suited for other types of
economic development. As a result, there is little “opportunity cost” for the County
associated with use of the Property as a solar facility. Furthermore, the Project provides
significant economic benefit to the County while requiring little if any public services.
Revenue from solar facilities has been used in other jurisdictions to support economic
development initiatives including telework centers, EMS communications and the
deployment of broadband internet.

3. Develop conditions “to protect the character of surrounding properties and not limit future
property development:”

The Applicant proposes a comprehensive set of Conditional Use Permit conditions
responding to the potential impacts on surrounding properties. The location of this
project is well suited for a solar facility, as adjacent uses are compatible with the passive
nature of a solar facility.

4. Ensure solar facilities will be decommissioned and that the developer is responsible for
decommissioning:

The Conditional Use Permit Conditions directly address decommissioning and the security
provided by the Applicant. This protects the County and its taxpayers from having to fund
decommissioning at the end of the Project’s usable lifetime.

Red Brick Solar LLC — Red Brick Solar Project — Lunenburg County, VA Page |9
Conditional Use Permit Application




Key Themes Relating to Solar Land Use in the Comprehensive Plan:
Protecting Natural Resources:

A major theme of the CP is to “protect and preserve the natural resources of the community” (Item F,
page 130) Embracing projects like Red Brick Solar over higher-polluting alternatives helps to ensure a
better quality of essential resources such as air and water. Solar facilities conform to the physical
characteristics (including wetlands and topography) of the land. While they may displace agricultural or
silviculture uses in their immediate footprint, they do not permanently alter the land in a way that would
preclude it from returning to its current use at the end of the solar facility’s life.

Part of protecting natural resources may also involve striking a balance between the economic benefits
and environmental destructiveness that can come with harvesting merchantable resources such as timber
and minerals. While often not considered, sunlight is a merchantable natural resource available to the
County. Projects like Red Brick Solar harvest sunlight while significantly reducing harmful impacts
associated with other resource cultivation, and Red Brick Solar will increase the county’s tax revenues by
an estimated amount of $ 7.8 million over the life of the Project.

Maintain Access to Outdoor Recreation and Historic Resources:

Maintaining the quality of recreational activity in the general project area is an important aspect of the
Project. As a part of that commitment, we are committing to not modifying the CCC road and it will
continue to be used only for access. There will be no changes or impact to Little Rock Bridge or Big Rock
Bridge, as these areas have been identified as important to our neighbors. We are actively pursuing
options that could leave a large portion of the proposed land available to hunters. Additionally, studies
have found that not only will this project not harm the North Meherrin River and remaining Albemarle
Sound watershed, it could even have even less effect on that resource than if the Property remains in its
current use. (See Section 3.5.2 for additional information regarding water management.)

Preserving Agricultural Land and Open Space:

As further explained on page 116 of the CP, a primary driver of preserving open space is that “future
residential, commercial and industrial development should be encouraged to locate in areas where
adequate public services are available or planned.” This concern is not applicable to solar development;
Unlike other forms of development, solar does not require significant, if any, public services.

Preserving Water Resources:

Solar panels contain no materials or substances that are volatile or soluble. Under no practical
circumstance, will any part of the panel evaporate into gas or become dissolvable in water. All the
materials used are solids, leaving no reasonable risk that they will leach into soil or contaminate water.
Sunlight is an easily harvested, non-invasive “crop” which requires no herbicides, insecticides, fungicides,
or chemical preservatives to generate revenue for the county and sustainable energy for all. For these
reasons, this development type is in accord with the concerns listed on page 117 and 118 of the CP
(Protection of Water Resources).

Red Brick Solar LLC — Red Brick Solar Project — Lunenburg County, VA Page |10
Conditional Use Permit Application




Diversify the Local Economy and Tax Base:

Finally, a primary goal of the CP is to “promote the expansion of a diversified economy” (CP p. 123) by
“attracting new industries to the locality” and “Improve[ing] employment opportunities for all residents;
capitalize on technology as a means to create high-paying, sustainable jobs (CP, Page 124). Red Brick Solar
will provide a significant boost to the local economy as evidenced by the construction of solar projects in
nearby counties including Mecklenburg, Halifax, Greensville, Sussex, Southampton. Solar energy is among
the fastest growing industries in the nation and is especially vibrant in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
Further, a majority of employers require access to non-fossil, renewable energy when deciding as to
where to locate facilities.

As described in Section 3.6: Benefits to the Local Community, the adoption of this growing field can lead
to direct economic boosts during construction and long-term economic gains by the local economy and
may serve to attract further business development to the region. Also, outlined in Section 3.6, the Project
will directly generate significant tax revenue. Funds raised from tax revenue would be enough to finance
several of the items listed in the CP “wish list”, on pages 140 and 141 pf the CP.

3.3. Equipment Used
33k Racking and Panels

Racking: The Project is expected use single-axis racking technology that allows the PV panels to track the
sun throughout the day. Measurements for this system type are included on the Preliminary Site Plan,
with system specifications included in Section 5.4: Representative Single Axis Tracking System. A row of
PV panels will be attached in a linear fashion to each of these racking systems. Other versions of tracking
or fixed technology will be considered for the Project.

Panels: Based on current technology, the Project’s site could contain between 410,000 and 475,000 solar
panels, in total. It is possible that increases in the output per panel may reduce the number of panels
needed for the Project. A preliminary solar layout is included in the Preliminary Site Plan. For more details
on these types of panels, see Section 5.5: Representative Solar Panel Specification Sheet.

332 Inverter Pads

The Project’s preliminary design includes between 26 and 52 inverter pads. Inverters convert the direct-
current energy generated by the panels to alternating-current energy that is ready to be transmitted onto
the electrical grid (transmission system). The specifications for a representative pad are provided in
Section 5.7: Representative Inverter Pad Spec Sheet. These pads contain the following: 3 to 5 inverters, a
transformer, and other accessory equipment, as needed. These pads are expected to be the tallest
equipment on site and, based on the current design, these inverters will be 10-12 feet in height.

The preliminary design uses Power Electronics FS1475CU15 inverters. Specifications for these inverters
can be found in the “Frame 7” column of the Specification Sheet shown in Section 5.7. Depending on final
engineering, this may be modified slightly, and the final site plan will be available to the County as part of
the building permitting process.

Red Brick Solar LLC — Red Brick Solar Project — Lunenburg County, VA Page |11
Conditional Use Permit Application




Administrator’s Update

A) Leave Policy Updates

B) Lunenburg County Emergency Operations Plan Renewal (please
review via the following link as the document is quite large)

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/803kq4v8uh3sysl/AABOqu
xDpXuXZI2pt7rYoAea?dl=0




Board of Supervisors April Meeting - 4/8/21
County Administrator's Monthly Report
Events in March:
March 1 - Tracy - 8hrs - Daycare closed
March 2 - Team meeting
March 2 - Conf call re: Heartland Park prospect
March 4 - VDH Vaccine POD planning call
March 4 -meet with Glynda and Dotty at DSS
March 5 - Virginia’s Crossroads online Board meeting
March 8 - Nicole PTO
March 9 - VDH Vaccine POD planning call
March 9 - Red Brick Solar Informational meeting
March 11 - VDH Vaccine POD planning call
March 11 - Board of Supervisors meeting
March 11 - Rural Solar Development Coalition call
March 12 - Drive Through Vaccination Point of Distribution at CHS
March 16 - Project Pork Chop meeting and site visit
March 16 - Planning Commission - Red Brick Solar 2232 Hearing
March 16-19 - Jamie in all day virtual Building Official training
March 17 - Piedmont Regional Jail Authority Board meeting
March 18 - Landfill Committee and Citizens Advisory meeting
March 19 - Radio System RFP evaluation call - CTA Consultants
March 22 - Lindy Fimon - Cooperative Extension budget meeting
March 22 - Carl Ashworth - follow-up from landfill committee meeting
March 23 - Tracy - STO - dentist and father’s doctor appt at McGuire
March 24 - Team meeting
March 25 - Virginia’s Growth Alliance Strategic Planning meeting - South Hill
March 26 - Interviews for Director of Planning and Economic Development
March 26 - Lunenburg Broadband planning call from DHCD
March 29 - Interview for Director of Planning and Economic Development
March 30 - Community Policy Management Team (CPMT) meeting w/ FAPT
March 30 - meet w/ Rob re: Election Security
March 30 - DSS personnel meeting with Benefits Unit
March 31 - Poorhouse Road Solar call

Administration
- Held two team meetings since it was a busy month, will get back to weekly.
- Met with Lindy Fimon re: Cooperative Extension. She notified me that her last day would be
April 1st,

- Danny Bond moved into the leased hangar at the Lunenburg Airport and has already started
making improvements. Larry has already sold over $200 in fuel to customers of Bond.

- Larry Way is looking to utilize “Square” to accept payment for fuel as an alternative for a card
reader at the pump for the time-being. We are looking into the costs and our options.

- - Will be purchasing an underground propane tank for the Airport to allow us to procure
propane gas at the best local rate; Amerigas will not let us purchase their tank.

T

County Administrator's Monthly Report Page 1




- Rodney and I participated in a call with CTA Consultants re: Radio System RFP evaluations.
Presentations will be held on April 16t all day with two respondents.

Piedmont Regional Jail Authority and Juvenile Detention Center Board -
- The State proposed increases of 5% for Comp Board covered positions at the Jail, so there is a
$150,000 increase in their budget to cover the non-Comp employees.

Schools
- The School budget is included under separate cover in the packet.
- The transition to in-person learning is going very well so far.

Social Services and Children's Services -

- Social Services still has three vacancies in their office. Interviews are forthcoming.

- The CSA Coordinator is still vacant, but Dotty has enlisted a neighboring locality CSA
Coordinator to assist until one can be hired. Hope Hodgson works for Nottoway County and
has been through CSA audits many times. We hope she will be helpful in our transition to a
new full-time staff member.

- . Held a meeting with the staff from the Benefits Program Unit and the Director, set an action
plan for their needs.

- Attended joint FAPT/CPMT meeting.

Solid Waste -
- We are still seeking land to build another site in Beaver Creek District.
- Jeff Robinson sent over a draft plan for Courthouse site. The committee reviewed and asked
for us to add a kiosk possibility at the location.
- Held Citizens Advisory meeting with staff at Meridian, discussed many concerns about
roadside trash and where to send bulky waste and recyclables.
- Recycling event scheduled for April 17th, 9A-1P at CHS.

UPCOMING dates of interest:
April 4 - Easter Sunday
April 5 - Tracy 8hrs PTO - No daycare
April 7 - Wayne Hoover’s Birthday
April 8 - Board of Supervisors meeting
April 9 - Vaccinations POD at CHS
April 16 - Radio System Presentations - Community Center, Victoria, VA
April 20 - Planning Commission 7PM

ROTARY Four-Way Test:

1. Is it the TRUTH?

2. Is it FAIR to all concerned?

3. Will it BUILD GOODWILL and BETTER FRIENDSHIPS?
4. Will it be BENEFICIAL to all concerned?

“Honesty is the first chapter in the book of wisdom.”
~Thomas Jefferson

County Administrator's Monthly Report Page 3




6-5 Annual Vacation; General policies

A. All eligible full-time employees shall earn annual vacation leave on a pay period (monthly)
basis as follows:
(1) A full-time employee earns annual vacation leave based upon years of service.

(2) The following chart sets forth the amounts of annual vacation leave that may be
accrued during each month based on years of service. A full day equates to eight hours and a full
week equates to forty hours.

Years of Service Monthly
Accrual Rate

Up to 5 years 1 day

5 years 1 % days

10 years 1% days

15 years 1 % days
20 years 2 days

25 years 2 % days

B. The following limits apply to the amount of annual vacation leave that is permitted to be

carried over to the next year as well as the amount that will be paid at termination. Any annual
vacation leave earned in excess of the maximum yearly carryover limit shall be lost for the pay
period in which it accrues. All employees are encouraged to take annual leave in sufficient
amounts so as to prevent it being lost by exceeding the maximum.

Years of Service | Maximum Yearly
Carryover
Up to 5 years 24 days
5 years 27 days
10 years 30 days
15 years 33 days
20 years 36 days
25 years 39 days
£ Temporary full-time and part-time employees do not accrue annual vacation.
D. Annual vacation shall be earned during an employee's initial probationary period but shall

not be taken until the probationary period is satisfactorily completed, unless approved by special
exception by the County Administrator.

E- Except as otherwise provided herein, upon leaving the County's service, an employee is
entitled to be paid at his or her current rate of pay for all accrued annual leave, but not above




the maximum accrual limit. In the event of death, the employee's estate shall be entitled to
payment for any unused annual leave balances.

F. The County Administrator reserves the right to deny or reduce pay for accumulated but
unused annual leave at his or her sole discretion when there is a dismissal for violation of County
policy or the separation from service is without proper notice.

G. The provisions of this policy shall not be applicable to the elected officials serving as
Constitutional Officers. The County shall not, under any circumstances, grant such Constitutional
Officers any annual leave, nor shall it make any annual leave accrual payment to such
Constitutional Officers.

H. If an approved holiday falls within a period of annual leave, it shall not be counted as an
annual leave day.

6-6 Sick Leave

A. All eligible full-time Virginia Retirement System Plan 1 & Plan 2 employees shall earn sick
leave at the rate of one (1) day each calendar month of employment or twelve (12) days per
calendar year. Each VRS Plan 1 & Plan 2 employee shall be allowed to accumulate and carry-
forward up to 120 days of sick leave. Employees will not be compensated for unused sick leave
upon separation from County service.

B. All eligible full-time Virginia Retirement System Hybrid Plan employees shall be provided
sick leave credits upon employment or the first day of the first full payroll period in January
according to the tables below. VRS Hybrid Plan employees will participate in the Hybrid Short-
term and Long-term Disability Plan (see separate manual) as required by VRS. This plan provides
leave for longer periods of absence due to illness. Upon participation in the short and/or long-
term disability plan, the sick leave balances of eligible employee will be frozen.

(1) At the discretion of the County Administrator or his/her designee, frozen sick leave
balances may be used to (a) supplement income during period when an employee is receiving
short or long-term disability benefits, or (b) for any allowable use of sick leave credit during the
one year waiting period prior to disability benefits.

Eligible full-time employees hired from January 1% through June 30t and subsequent years
thereafter:

Years of Service Sick Leave Credit in Days Sick Leave Credit in hours
Oto4d 12 96
5to9 13 104
10 and beyond 14 112

Sick leave credits will not accumulate and may not be carried over. Employees will not be

compensated for unused sick leave credits upon separation from County service.




Eligible full-time employees hired from July 1 through December 31%, subsequent years see
table above:

Sick Leave Credit in Days Sick Leave Credit in hours
6 48

Sick leave credits will not accumulate and may not be carried over. Employees will not be
compensated for unused sick leave credits upon separation from County service.

€ Temporary full-time and part-time employees do not earn or accrue sick leave.

D. Purpose of sick leave - Paid sick leave is not a right that an employee may use at his or her
discretion. It is used only for the following reasons:

(1) Personal illness or injury that prevents the employee from performing his or her
actual duties.

(2) Personal medical, dental or optical consultations or treatments.
(3) Exposure to contagious disease when there is reason to believe there exists actual
danger that the disease may be transmitted through the exposed employee to others during

the course of his or her official duties.

(4) Maternity leave.

(5) lliness or incapacity of the employee's immediate family, which shall not exceed
32 hours per calendar year. "Immediate family" is defined as the employee's spouse, children,
parents, grandparents, brother, sister, or any relative living in the employee's household.

(6) Other legitimate causes which, in the discretion of the County Administrator,
may be classified as warranting use of sick leave.

E. An employee shall directly notify the appropriate supervisor when the use of sick leave is
needed for one of the aforementioned reasons.

E. While the County Administrator has sole discretion concerning whether an employee
shall document his or her illness or injury, generally employees will be asked for a written
statement by a licensed health care professional in the following cases:

(1) An injury, illness, or medical condition that results in an absence during
assigned public safety or on-call shifts, and emergency schedules.

(2) An employee demonstrates excessive or habitual absences. The County
Administrator or Constitutional Officer shall notify the employee that excessive or
habitual absences have occurred in the past prior to requiring a written statement.



